
 

 

Democratic Services ◦ Chief Executive’s Department ◦ Leicestershire County Council ◦ County Hall  

Glenfield ◦ Leicestershire ◦ LE3 8RA ◦ Tel: 0116 232 3232 ◦ Email: democracy@leics.gov.uk 
 

 

www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy  

  
www.leicestershire.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 
  

 

Meeting: Corporate Governance Committee  
 
 

 

Date/Time: Friday, 26 July 2019 at 10.15 am 

Location: Guthlaxton Committee Room, County Hall, Glenfield 

Contact: Mrs J Twomey (tel: 0116 305 2583) 

Email: joanne.twomey@leics.gov.uk 

 
Membership 

 
Mr. T. Barkley CC 

Mr. G. A. Boulter CC 
Mr. J. G. Coxon CC 

Mr. T. Gillard CC 
Mr. J. Kaufman CC 

 

Mr. J. T. Orson JP CC 
Mr. T. J. Richardson CC 
Mr. S. D. Sheahan CC 
Mrs. A. Wright CC 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
Item   Report by   

 
1.  

  
Appointment of Chairman.  
 

 
 

 

 At the County Council meeting on 15 May 2019 Mr. T. Barkley CC was 
nominated as Chairman elect of the Corporate Governance Committee. 

 
 

 

2.  
  

Election of Vice Chairman.  
 

 
 

 

3.  
  

Minutes of the meeting held on 10th May 2019.  
 

 
 

(Pages 3 - 10) 

4.  
  

Question Time.  
 

 
 

 

5.  
  

Questions asked by members under Standing 
Order 7(3) and 7(5).  
 

 
 

 

6.  
  

To advise of any other items which the 
Chairman has decided to take as urgent 
elsewhere on the agenda.  
 

 
 

 

7.  Declarations of interest in respect of items on  
 

 

mailto:democracy@leics.gov.uk
http://www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy
http://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/how-the-council-works


 
 
 
 

 

  the agenda.  
 

8.  
  

External Audit of the 2018/19 Statement of 
Accounts, Annual Governance Statement and 
Pension Fund Accounts  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 11 - 50) 

9.  
  

Risk Management Report.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 51 - 68) 

 A presentation will be provided as part of this item on Corporate Risk 1.7 (If the 
Council is not compliant with the HRMC IR35 regulations regarding the employment 
of self-employed personnel then there is a risk of large financial penalties). 
 
 

 

10.  
  

Local Code of Corporate Governance 2019.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources and 
Director of Law 
and Governance 
 

(Pages 69 - 92) 

11.  
  

Annual Report on the operation of the 
Members' Code of Conduct and arrangements 
for dealing with complaints  
 

Director of Law 
and Governance 
 

(Pages 93 - 96) 

12.  
  

Internal Audit Service Progress Report.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 97 - 
108) 

13.  
  

Quarterly Treasury Management Update.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 109 - 
116) 

14.  
  

Date of future meetings -  
 

 
 

 

 The next meeting will take place on Friday, 1st November 2019 at 
10.00am. 
 
Meeting dates proposed for 2020 are –  
 
Friday, 31st January at 10.00am 
Friday, 22nd May at 2.00pm 
Friday, 24th July at 10.00am 
Friday, 6th November at 10.00am 
 
 

 

15.  
  

Any other items which the Chairman has 
decided to take as urgent.  
 

 
 

 



 

  

 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Corporate Governance Committee held at County Hall, 
Glenfield on Friday, 10 May 2019.  
 

PRESENT 
 

Mr. T. J. Richardson CC (in the Chair) 
 

Mr. T. Barkley CC 
Mr. G. A. Boulter CC 
Mr. T. Gillard CC 
Mr. D. Jennings CC 
 

Mr. J. Kaufman CC 
Mr. J. T. Orson JP CC 
Mr. S. D. Sheahan CC 
 

 
 

1. Minutes of the previous meeting.  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 29 March 2019 were taken as read, confirmed and 
signed.  
 

2. Question Time.  
 
The Chief Executive reported that no questions had been received under Standing Order 
35. 
 

3. Questions asked by members under Standing Order 7(3) and 7(5).  
 
The Chief Executive reported that no questions had been received under Standing Order 
7(3) and 7(5). 
 

4. Urgent Items.  
 
There were no urgent items for consideration. 
 

5. Declarations of interest.  
 
The Chairman invited members who wished to do so to declare any interest in respect of 
items on the agenda for the meeting. 
 
Mr T. J. Richardson CC declared a personal interest in agenda items 14 and 15 - Annual 
Treasury Management Report 2018/19 and Quarterly Treasury Management Update 
respectively - as he was in receipt of a pension from Lloyds Bank Plc. 
 

6. Informing the External Audit Risk Assessment.  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources which set out 
the County Council’s response to its external auditors (Grant Thornton UK LLP) Risk 
Assessment for 2018/19 for consideration and comment.  A copy of the report, marked 
‘Agenda Item 6’, is filed with these minutes. 
 
The Chairman welcomed Mr. John Gregory of Grant Thornton UK LLP to the meeting. 

3 Agenda Item 3



 
 

 

 
Members noted that having considered the County Council’s responses to the risk 
assessment, Grant Thornton had confirmed it was content with the arrangements the 
Council had in place and the assurances provided by officers. 
 
In response to questions raised, Mr Gregory confirmed that the external auditor’s risk 
assessment of ‘related party transactions’ did not include an assessment of the Council’s 
general contract performance monitoring arrangements.  This fell outside the scope of 
this particular exercise.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the contents of the report by Grant Thornton (the Council’s external auditors), 
‘Informing the audit risk assessment for Leicestershire County Council 2018/19’, be noted 
and the responses provided by officers to the questions raised by the external auditors, 
as set out in their report, be supported without amendment. 
 

7. Risk Management Report.  
 
Members considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources, the purpose of 
which was to provide an overview of key risk areas and the measure being taken to 
address them.  The report also provided an update on the Risk Maturity Health Check 
and Counter Fraud.  A copy of the report, marked ‘Agenda Item 7’, is field with these 
Minutes. 
 
As part of this item, members also received a presentation on Corporate risk 10.1 (the 
risk that not developing an inclusive culture across all schools, education providers and 
partner agencies (including the Parent Carer Forum) will impact on parental confidence in 
the ability of the ‘whole system’ to meet the needs of the large majority of children with 
Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) in a mainstream school context).   A 
copy of the presentation slides is filed with these minutes. 
 
Arising from discussion, the following points arose –  
 
Risk Presentation 
 
i. Members welcomed the tremendous work being undertaken and agreed that 

effective early SEND Support would be critical to prevent greater issues arising for 
a child as they progressed through school and approached adulthood.   

ii. Most children with SEND were well supported within mainstream schools without 
the need for an Education, Health and Care Plan. 

iii. Often children with SEND faced issues at school and families could also face 
issues at home.  A whole family approach was therefore necessary to coordinate 
support from health, education and social care. 

iv. Improving the information provided to parents was important to ensure they could 
have confidence in the system and understand the role of the County Council and 
how this was independent of the responsibilities of individual schools. 

v. Greater involvement with parent carers through the Parent Carer Forum would 
inform future conversations about the design of Council policy and the services it 
and its partners provided to children with SEND. 

 
 
 

4



 
 

 

Risk Register 
 
vi. The preliminary hearing scheduled for 23 May had been put back by the 

Independent Inquiry into Child Sexual Abuse (IICSA) and would now take place on 
24 September (risk 5.1).  The three weeks set aside for the full hearing in February 
2020 remained unchanged. 

vii. Members agreed that, given the information now presented in the report and 
Appendix A, the full Risk Register no longer needed to be circulated for every 
meeting.  However, it was suggested that this be circulated at least once a year 
and otherwise made available to Members upon request. 

viii. Members requested that a presentation be provided at its next meeting on 
corporate risk 1.7 (If the Council is not compliant with the HRMC IR35 regulations 
regarding the employment of self-employed personnel then there is a risk of large 
financial penalties). 

ix. Members welcomed the additional challenge proposed for risks listed on the 
register and the introduction of Action Plans to move risks towards their target 
scores, as well enable better performance monitoring. 
  

RESOLVED: 
 
(a) That the current status of the strategic risks facing the County Council be 

approved; 
 

(b) That the content of the presentation provided on corporate risk 10.1 (The risk of 
not developing an inclusive culture across all schools, education providers and 
partner agencies (including the Parent Carer Forum) that will meet the needs of 
the large majority of children with Special Educational Needs and Disabilities in a 
mainstream school context) be noted and the good work taking place in this area 
be supported; 
 

(c) That at the next meeting of the Committee a presentation be provided on 
corporate risk 1.7 (If the Council is not compliant with the HRMC IR35 regulations 
regarding the employment of self-employed personnel then there is a risk of large 
financial penalties); 
 

(d) That in future, a copy of the full Corporate Risk Register be circulated to the 
Committee for information and comment on an annual basis and otherwise be 
made available to members on request; 
 

(e) That the proposal set out in paragraph 7 of the report, to further challenge risks on 
the Corporate Risk Register in an attempt to move risks to their target score and 
potentially reduce the number reported on the Register, be supported; 
 

(f) That the final report provided by Risk Management Partners attached as Appendix 
C to the report be noted, and it be further noted that a more detailed update will be 
provided at the next meeting of the Committee; 
 

(g) That the update on counter fraud initiatives be noted. 
 

8. Annual Governance Statement 2019/20.  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources, the purpose 
of which was to present the County Council’s draft Annual Governance Statement for 

5



 
 

 

2018/19 for consideration.  A copy of the report, marked ‘Agenda Item 8’, is filed with 
these minutes.  
 
Members noted that no significant issues had arisen during the 2018/19 financial year 
and that the Statement would be reviewed by the Council’s external auditors, Grant 
Thornton UK LLP, as part of its consideration of the Council’s Statement of Accounts, 
before being finalised and signed by the Chief Executive and the Leader in late July. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

(a) That the draft Annual Governance Statement for 2018/19 attached as an Appendix 
to the report be noted and supported without amendment; 
 

(b) That it be noted that the Annual Governance Statement for 2018/19, which might 
be subject to such changes as are required by the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting, has been prepared in accordance with best practice. 
 

9. Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 - Annual review of Policy Statement.  
 
Members considered a report by the Director of Law and Governance, the purpose of 
which was to advise the Committee of changes in legislation relating to the acquisition of 
communications data by local authorities which had resulted in changes having to be 
made to the Councils Covert Surveillance and the Acquisition of Communications Data 
Policy Statement.  A copy of the report, marked ‘Agenda Item 9’, is filed with these 
minutes. 
 
In response to questions raised, the Director confirmed that the IPCO (Investigatory 
Powers Commissioner’s Office) had been established to ensure that those with 
appropriate expertise had oversight of all future data communication requests.  This was 
a very technical area and as such responsibility had transferred to this specialist 
regulatory agency.  The Director confirmed that the IPCO was led by Lord Justice Sir 
Adrian Fulford who was supported by a team of people with appropriate technical, legal 
and scientific expertise.  The Director undertook to provide further information regarding 
the composition of the IPCO and those it appointed.   
 
RESOLVED: 
 
(a)          That the changes introduced by the Data Retention and Acquisition Regulations (SI 

2018/1123) be noted; 
 

(b)          That the Cabinet at its meeting on 24 May be recommended to approve the revised 
Policy Statement on the use of RIPA and IPA powers. 

 
10. Ethical Standards in Local Government.  

 
Members considered a report of the Director of Law and Governance regarding the 
findings of the Committee on Standards in Public Life (the Committee) following its review 
of local government ethical standards.  A copy of the report, marked ‘Agenda Item 10’, is 
filed with these minutes. 
 
The Director advised that the Government’s response to the Committee’s 
recommendations was expected in the summer and a detailed review of the Council’s 

6



 
 

 

processes and procedures would be undertaken at that time.  Members noted that the 
recommendations could not be implemented without a change in legislation.   
 
Whilst the best practice recommendations could be implemented immediately, the 
Director explained that these too would be considered as part of the overall review 
planned for later in the year.  Members’ views were being sought to allow these to be 
taken into account as part of that process. 
 
Regarding the best practice recommendations (BPR), members made the following 
comments -  
 

 Councillors should be required under the Code of Conduct to comply with any 
formal investigation process (BPR 2) 

 The Council’s Code should be reviewed as and when necessary but otherwise 
once every term of the Council (BPR 3) 

 Members should update their gifts and hospitality register at least once per quarter 
(BPR 5) 

 The Council’s existing Criteria remained fit for purpose (BPR 6) 

 A specific web page should be created dedicated to Member conduct matters and 
decisions regarding an allegation of misconduct published here to ensure these 
were easily accessible to the public (BPR 9) 

 The Council’s current process for handling complaints should be amended to 
include broad indicative timescales (BPR 10) 

 Meetings should be held with both political group leaders and group whips to 
discuss standards related matters, but these should be held only as and when 
considered necessary (BPR 15) 

 
RESOLVED: 
 
(a) That the recommendations and best practice recommendations made by the 

Committee on Standards in Public Life be noted, together with the comparisons 
made against the Council’s current arrangements as set out in the appendix to the 
report; 
 

(b) That it be noted that the Government’s response to the report of the Committee on 
Standards in Public Life, including any changes to legislation, was awaited; 
 

(c) That it be noted that, on receipt of the Government’s response, a detailed review 
of the Council’s Members’ Code of Conduct and  current arrangements for dealing 
with Member Conduct complaints, would be undertaken and feedback now 
provided by the Committee would be considered as part of that exercise.  
 

11. Internal Audit Service Progress Report.  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources which 
summarised the work of the County Council’s Internal Audit Service during the period 5 
January to 26 April 2019, highlighted audits where high importance recommendations 
had been made and provided a brief update on the resources of the Service.  A copy of 
the report, marked ‘Agenda Item 11’, is filed with these minutes. 
 
The Director confirmed that sufficient resources were in place to meet the needs of the 
Service.  However, the structure review was being undertaken to ensure the Service 
remained flexible, responsive and equipped to meet the future needs of the Authority. 

7



 
 

 

  
RESOLVED: 
 
That the update now provided and the internal audit work conducted during the period 5 
January to 25 April 2019, together with progress made on the implementation of high 
importance recommendations, be noted. 
 

12. Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2018/19.  
 
Members considered a report by the Director of Corporate Resources, the purpose of 
which was to present the annual report on work carried out by the Internal Audit Service 
during 2018/19.  A copy of the report, marked ‘Agenda Item 12’, is filed with these 
minutes. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
(a) That the annual report on work conducted by the Internal Audit Service during 

2018/19 be noted; 
 

(b) That a copy of the annual report be distributed to all members of the Council. 
 

13. Internal Audit Annual Plan 2019/20.  
 
Members considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources, the purpose of 
which was to present the County Council’s outline Internal Audit Plan for 2019-20.  The 
report also set out the internal audit resources allocated to the other assurance functions 
and in providing services to other organisations.  A copy of the report, marked ‘Agenda 
Item 13’, is filed with these minutes. 
 
The Director confirmed that a further report would be provided at an appropriate time on 
any governance changes that might be required following the National Audit Office report 
on ‘Local Authority Governance’. 
 
In response to questions raised, the Director confirmed that the Plan for 2019-20 included 
audits of arrangements for s106 developer contribution agreements and Personal 
Budgets. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20 be noted. 
 

14. Annual Treasury Management Report 2018/19.  
 
Members considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources, the purpose of 
which was to advise the Committee of actions taken and the performance achieved in 
respect of the treasury management activities of the Council during 2018/19.  A copy of 
the report, marked ‘Agenda Item 14’, is filed with these minutes. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the action taken and the performance achieved in respect of the treasury 
management activities of the Council during 2018/19 be noted. 
 

8



 
 

 

15. Quarterly Treasury Management Update.  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources which set out 
the actions taken in respect of treasury management for the quarter ending 31 March 
2019.  A copy of the report, marked ‘Agenda Item 15’, is filed with these minutes. 
 
Members noted that when making investment decisions the return on investment for 
approved counterparties should be the key priority when making those decisions.  
However, informally the Council also had regard for wider considerations that could affect 
the reputation of the Authority when investing with certain organisations 
 

RESOLVED: 
 
That the actions taken in respect of treasury management for the quarter ending 31 
March 2019 be noted. 
 

16. Date of next meeting.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the next meeting of the Committee be held on Friday, 26th July 2019 starting at 
10.00am. 
 
 

10.00  - 11.43 am CHAIRMAN 
10 May 2019 

 

9



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 26 JULY 2019 

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 

 
EXTERNAL AUDIT OF THE 2018/19 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS, ANNUAL 

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT AND PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS 
 
 
Purpose of Report 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to set out the key findings from the external audit of the 

2018/19 financial statements and to seek the Committee’s approval of the draft letters of 
representation. 

 
Background 
 
2. Grant Thornton UK LLP, the County Council’s external auditor, is required to 

communicate the results of the 2018/19 audit of the Council’s financial statements to 
those charged with governance prior to certifying the financial statements. The draft 
2018/19 Statement of Accounts, Annual Governance Statement (AGS) and Pension Fund 
Accounts can be viewed on the Council’s website via the following link:-  
 
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/field/pdf/2019/5/31/draft-statement-of-
accounts%20-%2031-may-2019.pdf 

 
3. A copy of the auditor’s report is attached as Appendix A to this report.  

  
4. A copy of the letters of representation for the County Council and Pension Fund are 

attached as Appendix B and C to this report for member consideration.  
 
5. John Gregory, Key Audit Partner from Grant Thornton UK LLP, responsible for the audit 

will attend the Committee meeting to communicate any significant findings and answer 
any questions.    

 
6. The audit of the 2018/19 accounts is the first year of Grant Thornton UK LLP as the 

external auditor of the County Council.   
  

Key Findings of the External Auditor 
 

7. The auditor has reviewed the financial statements and has concluded that there are no 
material accounting issues to report.  The external auditor anticipates issuing an 
unqualified opinion. 
 

8. The key findings were:  

  
11 Agenda Item 8

https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/field/pdf/2019/5/31/draft-statement-of-accounts%20-%2031-may-2019.pdf
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/field/pdf/2019/5/31/draft-statement-of-accounts%20-%2031-may-2019.pdf


  

 The Council’s accounts were amended to include the impact of the McCloud judicial 
judgement, regarding age discrimination arising from public sector pension scheme 
transition arrangements. This follows the Supreme Court decision in June 2019 to 
refuse the Government’s request to appeal the decision. The estimated impact of 
the ruling is £13.1m and this has been updated in the accounts.    
  

 Property, Plant and Equipment note, amendments required between categories 
within the note. Mainly affecting the split between additions and assets under 
construction. The overall totals were unaffected. 
 

 Pension Fund Accounts, additional disclosures required to meet the latest CIPFA 
recommended code of practice.  

 
9. The original planned audit fees totalled £80,532.  As part of the audit the auditor has had 

to carry out additional procedures which were not included in the original fee; these have 
been discussed and agreed with the Director of Corporate Resources and total £10,500: 
  
a. McCloud judgement, £3,000 - additional work required to review the impact. 
b. Pension, IAS19 letters, £6,000 – assurance provided to other Employers auditors. 

The Fund will recover these fees from the Employers concerned. 
c. Property, Plant and Equipment £1,500 – additional assurance required by the 

Financial Reporting Council.  
   

Recommendation 
  
10. The Committee is asked to consider the issues raised in the auditor’s report and approve 

the draft letters of representation.  
 
Equal Opportunities Implications 
11. None. 
 
Circulation Under the Local Issues Alert Procedure 
12. None. 
 
Background Papers 
None. 
 
Officers to Contact 
Mr C Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources,  
Corporate Resources Department, 
0116 305 6199    E-mail Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk 
 
Mr D Keegan, Assistant Director (Strategic Finance and Property),  
Corporate Resources Department,  
0116 305 7668   E-mail Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk 
 
Appendices 
Appendix A - External Auditors Report  
Appendix B - Letter of Representation (County Council) 
Appendix C - Letter of Representation (Pension Fund) 

12

mailto:Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk
Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk


© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Leicestershire County Council and Leicestershire Pension Fund|  2018/19 

DRAFT
This version of the 

report is a draft. Its 

contents and subject 

matter remain under 

review and its contents 

may change and be 

expanded as part of the 

finalisation of the report.

This draft has been 

created from the 

template dated

DD MMM YYYY

The Audit Findings

for Leicestershire County Council and 

Leicestershire Pension Fund 

26 July 2019

Year ended 31 March 2019

13



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Leicestershire County Council and Leicestershire Pension Fund|  2018/19 

DRAFT

2

Contents

Section Page

1. Headlines 3

2. Financial statements 5

3. Value for money 18

4. Independence and ethics 19

Appendices

A. Audit adjustments

B. Fees

C. Audit Opinion – County Council

D. Audit Opinion – Pension Fund 

The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed for the purpose of expressing 

our opinion on the financial statements. Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all areas of control weakness. However, where, as part of our testing, we identify 

control weaknesses, we will report these to you. In consequence, our work cannot be relied upon to disclose all defalcations or other irregularities, or to include all possible improvements 

in internal control that a more extensive special examination might identify. This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our 

prior written consent. We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report 

was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is 

available from our registered office.  Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant 

Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents 

of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

Your key Grant Thornton 

team members are:

John Gregory

Engagement Lead

T:  0121 232 5333

E: john.gregory@uk.gt.com

Avtar Sohal

Engagement Manager

T: 0121 232 5420

E: avtar.s.sohal@uk.gt.com

Kerry Sharma

Executive

T: 0116 257 5576

E: kerry.sharma@uk.gt.com

14

mailto:john.gregory@uk.gt.com
mailto:avtar.s.sohal@uk.gt.com
mailto:kerry.sharma@uk.gt.com


© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Leicestershire County Council and Leicestershire Pension Fund|  2018/19 

DRAFT

3

Headlines
This table summarises the key findings and other matters arising from the statutory audit of Leicestershire County Council (‘the Council’) and the Leicestershire Pension Fund

(‘Pension Fund’) and the preparation of the Council’s and Pension Fund financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 for those charged with governance.

Financial

Statements 

- Council

Under International Standards of Audit (UK) (ISAs) and the National Audit

Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice ('the Code'), we are required to report

whether, in our opinion, the Council’s and Pension Fund’s financial statements:

• give  a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council and Pension 

Fund and  income and expenditure for the year; and

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC code 

of practice on local authority accounting and prepared in accordance with 

the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.

We are also required to report whether other information published together 

with the audited financial statements (including the Annual Governance 

Statement (AGS), Narrative Report and Pension Fund Financial Statements),  

is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 

obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Our audit work was completed on site during June and July. We have 

identified a £13.1m adjustment to the financial statements in relation to the 

McCloud judgement which increased the Council’s net pension liability and 

also impacts on the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Audit adjustments are detailed in Appendix A. 

Our work is substantially complete and there are no matters of which we are 

aware that would require modification of our audit opinion Appendix C or 

material changes to the financial statements, subject to the following 

outstanding matters;

• final audit housekeeping steps

• receipt of supporting documentation for some outstanding items in our 

sample testing

• receipt of some third party investment confirmations from financial 

institutions

• updating our post balance sheet events review, to the date of signing the 

opinion 

• receipt of management representation letter; and

• review of the final set of financial statements.

We have concluded that the other information to be published with the 

financial statements is consistent with our knowledge of your organisation and 

the financial statements we have audited.

Our anticipated audit report opinions will be unmodified.

Financial

Statements 

– Pension 

Fund

Under International Standards of Audit (UK) (ISAs) and the National Audit

Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice ('the Code'), we are required to report

whether, in our opinion, the Pension Fund's financial statements:

• give  a true and fair view of the financial position of the Pension Fund and 

its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2019; and

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC code 

of practice on local authority accounting and prepared in accordance with 

the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014

Our audit work was completed on site during June and July. Our audit of the 

Fund did not identify any material adjustments to the financial statements but 

we did request a significant number of improvements to the disclosure notes. 

Audit adjustments are detailed in Appendix A. 

Our work is substantially complete and there are no matters of which we are 

aware that would require modification of our audit opinion (Appendix D) or 

material changes to the financial statements, subject to the following 

outstanding matters: (continued over)

15



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Leicestershire County Council and Leicestershire Pension Fund | 2018/19

DRAFT

4

Headlines – continued

Financial Statements –

Pension fund 

(continued)

• final audit housekeeping steps

• receipt of supporting documentation for some outstanding items in our sample testing

• receipt of some third party investment confirmations from financial institutions

• updating our post balance sheet events review, to the date of signing the opinion 

• receipt of management representation letter; and

• review of the final set of financial statements.

Our anticipated audit report opinion will be unmodified..

Value for Money 

arrangements

Under the National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit

Practice ('the Code'), we are required to report if, in

our opinion, the Council has made proper

arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and

effectiveness in its use of resources ('the value for

money (VFM) conclusion’).

We have completed our risk based review of the Council’s value for money arrangements. 

We have concluded that Leicestershire County Council has proper arrangements to secure 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

We therefore anticipate issuing an unqualified value for money conclusion, as detailed in 

Appendix C. Our findings are summarised in the Value for Money section of the report.

Statutory duties The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (‘the

Act’) also requires us to:

• report to you if we have applied any of the

additional powers and duties ascribed to us under

the Act; and

• To certify the closure of the audit.

We have not exercised any of our additional statutory powers or duties

We have completed the majority of work under the Code but are unable to issue our 

completion certificate until we complete our work on the Whole Government Accounts review. 

This will be completed in line with national deadlines. We also need to wait until The Pension 

Fund Annual Report has been produced in line with the national deadline for this, and 

undertake the necessary work to ensure this is consistent with the audited accounts.

Acknowledgements

We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the assistance provided by the finance team and other staff during our audit. In this first year of being your 

auditors, we have sought to discuss issues with your officers early to avoid issues surfacing late, and officers have responded positively to this.

16



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Leicestershire County Council and Leicestershire Pension Fund | 2018/19

DRAFT

5

Summary

Overview of the scope of our audit

This Audit Findings Report presents the observations arising from the audit that are 

significant to the responsibility of those charged with governance to oversee the financial 

reporting process, as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK) 260 and the 

Code of Audit Practice (‘the Code’). Its contents will be discussed with management and 

the Corporate Governance Committee. 

As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International 

Standards on Auditing (UK) and the Code, which is directed towards forming and 

expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have been prepared by 

management with the oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of the 

financial statements does not relieve management or those charged with governance of 

their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements.

Audit approach

Our audit approach was based on a thorough understanding of the Council’s and Pension 

Fund’s business and is risk based, and in particular included:

• An evaluation of the Council’s and Pension Funds internal controls environment, 

including its IT systems and controls; and

• Substantive testing on significant transactions and material account balances, including 

the procedures outlined in this report in relation to the key audit risks

We have not had to alter or change our audit plan, as communicated to you on 18 January 

2019.

Conclusion

We have substantially completed our audit of your financial statements and, subject to 

outstanding queries being resolved, we anticipate issuing unqualified audit opinions 

following the Corporate Governance Committee meeting on 26 July 2019, as detailed in 

Appendices C and D . These outstanding items include are included on page 3 and 4 of 

this report.

Financial statements 
17



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Leicestershire County Council and Leicestershire Pension Fund | 2018/19

DRAFT

6

Materiality
The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements and the audit process and applies not only to the monetary misstatements but also to disclosure 

requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and applicable law. Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if they, individually or in the 

aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

Matter Description Planned audit response to the Council Planned audit response to the Pension Fund


Calculation and determination

We have determined planning materiality (financial 

statement materiality determined at the planning 

stage of the audit) based on professional judgment 

in the context of our knowledge of the Authority and 

the Fund, including consideration of factors such as 

stakeholder expectations, financial stability and 

reporting requirements for the financial statements.

We determine planning materiality in order to:

− estimate the tolerable level of misstatement 

in the financial statements

− assist in establishing the scope of our audit 

engagement and audit tests

− calculate sample sizes and

− assist in evaluating the effect of known and 

likely misstatements in the financial 

statements

• For the Council, we have determined financial 

statement materiality based on a proportion of the 

gross expenditure of the Authority for the financial 

year. Materiality at the planning stage of our audit was 

£14m for the Authority. (cost of services). 

• For the Pension Fund, we have determined financial 

statement materiality based on a proportion of the 

Pension Fund’s net assets. Our materiality at the 

planning stage was £29m which equates to 1% of your 

actual net assets for the year ended 31 March 2018.


Other factors

An item does not necessarily have to be large to be 

considered to have a material effect on the financial 

statements. We design our procedures to detect 

errors in specific accounts at a lower level of 

precision which we deem to be relevant to 

stakeholders.

• For the Council, we have determined a lower specific 

materiality level of £100K for senior officer 

remuneration disclosures. 

• No lower level materiality 


Reassessment of materiality

Our assessment of materiality is kept under review 

throughout the audit process.

• Materiality calculations remain the same as reported in 

our audit plan 

• Materiality calculations remain the same as reported in 

our audit plan 

18



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Leicestershire County Council and Leicestershire Pension Fund | 2018/19

DRAFT

7

Materiality
The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements and the audit process and applies not only to the monetary misstatements but also to disclosure 

requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and applicable law. Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if they, individually or in the 

aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

Matter Description Planned audit response Council Planned audit response for Pension Fund


Matters we will report to the Corporate 

Governance Committee

Whilst our audit procedures are designed to 

identify misstatements which are material to our 

opinion on the financial statements as a whole, we 

nevertheless report to the Corporate Governance 

Committee any unadjusted misstatements of 

lesser amounts, other than those which are 

‘clearly trivial’, to those charged with governance. 

ISA 260 (UK) defines ‘clearly trivial’ as matters 

that are clearly inconsequential, whether taken 

individually or in aggregate and whether judged by 

any quantitative or qualitative criteria.

• In our view, an individual difference could normally be 

considered to be clearly trivial if it is less than £0.7m. 

• If management have corrected material misstatements 

identified during the course of the audit, we will 

consider whether those corrections should be 

communicated to the Corporate Governance 

Committee to assist it in fulfilling its governance 

responsibilities.

• In the context of the Pension Fund, in our view an 

individual difference could normally be considered to 

be clearly trivial if it is less than £1.45m. 

19



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Leicestershire County Council and Leicestershire Pension Fund | 2018/19 

DRAFT

8

Significant findings – audit risks

Matter

Risks identified in our 

Audit Plan Risk relates to Auditor Comments


Fraudulent revenue recognition

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable presumed risk that

revenue may be misstated due to the improper recognition of

revenue.

This presumption can be rebutted if the auditor concludes 

that there is no risk of material misstatement due to fraud 

relating to revenue recognition.

Authority and 

Pension Fund

Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of the revenue 

streams at the Authority and the Fund, we have determined that the risk of fraud 

arising from revenue recognition can be rebutted, because:

• there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition

• opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited

• the culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including Leicestershire 

County Council and Leicestershire Pension Fund, mean that all forms of fraud 

are seen as unacceptable

Therefore we do not consider this to be a significant risk for Leicestershire County 

Council and Leicestershire Pension Fund


Management override of controls

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable presumed risk 

that the risk of management over-ride of controls is present 

in all entities. The Authority and Fund faces external scrutiny 

of its spending and this could potentially place management 

under undue pressure in terms of how they report 

performance.

We therefore identified management override of control, in 

particular journals, management estimates and transactions 

outside the course of business as a significant risk for both 

the Authority and Fund, which was one of the most 

significant assessed risks of material misstatement.

Authority and 

Pension Fund

We have:

• evaluated the design effectiveness of management controls over journals

• analysed the journals listing and determined the criteria for selecting high risk 

unusual journals 

• tested unusual journals recorded during the year and after the draft accounts 

stage for appropriateness and corroboration

• gained an understanding of the accounting estimates and critical  judgements 

applied made by management and considered their reasonableness with 

regard to corroborative evidence

• evaluate the rationale for any changes in accounting policies, estimates or 

significant unusual transactions.

Conclusion

Our audit work has not identified any issues in respect of management override of 

controls.

Financial Statements 
20



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Leicestershire County Council and Leicestershire Pension Fund | 2018/19 

DRAFT

9

Significant findings – audit risks 

Risks identified in our Audit Plan Risk relates to Auditor Comments


Valuation of Land and Buildings

The Authority revalues its land and buildings on a rolling 

five-yearly basis..  This valuation represents a significant 

estimate by management in the financial statements due to 

the size of the numbers involved (NBV of L&B £547million) 

and the sensitivity of this estimate to changes in key 

assumptions. Additionally, management will need to ensure 

the carrying value in the Authority financial statements is 

not materially different from the current value or the fair 

value (for surplus assets) at the financial statements date, 

where a rolling programme is used.

We therefore identified valuation of land and buildings, 

particularly revaluations and impairments, as a significant 

risk, which was one of the most significant assessed risks 

of material misstatement, and a key audit matter.

Authority We have:

• evaluated management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimate,

the instructions issued to valuation experts and the scope of their work

• evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the valuation expert

• written to the valuer to confirm the basis on which the valuation was carried out to

ensure that the requirements of the Code have been met

• challenged the information and assumptions used by the valuer to assess completeness

and consistency with our understanding

• tested revaluations made during the year to see if they had been input correctly into the

Authority's asset register

• evaluated the assumptions made by management for those assets not revalued during

the year and how management have satisfied themselves that these are not materially

different to current value at year end. d.

Conclusion

From the procedures carried out we are satisfied that the valuation of land and building in 

the financial statements is not materially misstated.

Financial statements
21



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Leicestershire County Council and Leicestershire Pension Fund | 2018/19 

DRAFT

10

Significant findings – audit risks 

Risks identified in our Audit Plan

Risk 

relates 

to Commentary – Council


Valuation of the pension fund net 

liability

The Authority's pension fund net 

liability, as reflected in its balance 

sheet as the net defined benefit 

liability, represents a significant 

estimate in the financial statements.  

The pension fund net liability is 

considered a significant estimate due 

to the size of the numbers involved 

(£742m million in the Authority’s 

balance sheet at 31 March 2019) and 

the sensitivity of the estimate to 

changes in key assumptions.

We therefore identified valuation of 

the Authority’s pension fund net 

liability as a significant risk, which 

was one of the most significant 

assessed risks of material 

misstatement, and a key audit matter

Authority Auditor commentary

We have

• updated our understanding of the processes and controls put in place by management to ensure that the Council’s net 

pension fund liability is not materially misstated and evaluate the design of the associated controls;

• evaluated the instructions issued by management  to their management expert (an actuary) for this estimate and the 

scope of the actuary’s work;

• assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the actuary who carried out the Council’s pension fund 

valuation; 

• assessed the accuracy and completeness of the information provided by the Council to the actuary to estimate the 

liability;

• tested the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures in the notes to the core financial 

statements with the actuarial report from the actuary;

• undertaken procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions made by reviewing the report of 

the consulting actuary (as auditor’s expert) and performing any additional procedures suggested within the report; and

Impact of the McCloud judgement

The Court of Appeal has ruled that there was age discrimination in the judges and firefighters pension schemes where 

transitional protections were given to scheme members. The legal ruling around age discrimination (McCloud - Court of 

Appeal) has implications not just for pension funds, but also for other pension schemes where they have implemented 

transitional arrangements on changing benefits. The LGPS Scheme Advisory Board (with the consent of the Ministry of 

Housing, Communities and Local Government) commissioned GAD to prepare an assessment of the financial impact of 

the McCloud judgement on an LGPS scheme-wide basis to inform the financial reporting of participating entities. The 

report shows the estimates of the cost of the remedy if the LGPS underpin was found to result in unlawful age 

discrimination. 

As a result of the ruling we have worked with the Council to consider the implications and as a result the Council have 

commissioned a further actuarial assessment to include the impact of the case. This resulted in an increase in the net 

pensions liability recorded in the Council’s accounts, with the liability rising from £728.6m to £741.7m. We have carried 

out additional work locally and nationally to assess the approach and assumptions used by the actuary in providing this 

updated estimate.

Conclusion

The Council have adjusted its pensions liability in its financial statements, and our audit procedures have confirmed that 

it is not materially misstated

Financial statements
22



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Leicestershire County Council and Leicestershire Pension Fund | 2018/19 

DRAFT

11

Significant findings – audit risks 

Risks identified in our Audit Plan

Risk relates 

to Commentary – Council


Valuation of Level 3 Investments (Annual 

revaluation)

The Fund revalues its investments on an annual 

basis to ensure that the carrying value is not 

materially different from the fair value at the 

financial statements date.

By their nature Level 3 investment valuations lack 

observable inputs. These valuations therefore 

represent a significant estimate by management in 

the financial statements due to the size of the 

numbers involved and the sensitivity of this 

estimate to changes in key assumptions

Under ISA 315 significant risks often relate to 

significant non-routine transactions and 

judgemental matters.  Level 3 investments by their 

very nature require a significant degree of 

judgement to reach an appropriate valuation at 

year end.

We therefore identified valuation of Level 3 

investments as a significant risk, which was one of 

the most significant assessed risks of material 

misstatement, and a key audit matter.

Pension Fund Auditor commentary

We have:

• evaluated management's processes for valuing Level 3 investments 

• reviewed the nature and basis of estimated values and considered what assurance management 

has over the year end valuations provided for these types of investments; 

• for a sample of investments, tested the valuation by obtaining and reviewing the audited 

accounts, (where available) at the latest date for individual investments and agreeing these to the 

fund manager reports at that date, and reconciled those values to the values at 31 March 2019 

with reference to known movements in the intervening period.

• in the absence of available audited accounts, we evaluated the competence, capabilities and 

objectivity of the expert on which management relied for the valuation.

Conclusion

From the audit testing completed we are satisfied that the Valuation of Level 3 investments is free 

from material misstatement.

Financial statements
23



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Leicestershire County Council and Leicestershire Pension Fund|  2018/19 

DRAFT

12

Significant findings – key judgements and estimates (Council)

Financial statements

Summary of management’s policy Audit Comments Assessment

Land and Buildings –

Other - £683m

Other land and buildings comprises of 

specialised assets such as schools and libraries, 

which are required to be valued at depreciated 

replacement cost (DRC) at year end, reflecting 

the cost of a modern equivalent asset necessary 

to deliver the same service provision. The 

remainder of other land and buildings are not 

specialised in nature and are required to be 

valued at existing use in value (EUV) at year 

end. The Council has engaged its Internal Valuer

to complete the valuation of properties as at 31 

03 19 on a five yearly cyclical basis. £231m out 

of £547.6m of total assets were revalued during 

2018/19. The valuation of properties valued by 

the valuer has resulted in a net increase of 

£51.2m. Management have considered the year 

end value of non-valued properties in 

consultation with the valuer. Management’s 

assessment of assets not revalued has identified 

no material change to the properties value. 

• The Authority carries out a rolling programme that ensure that all Property, 

Plant and Equipment required to be measured at fair value is revalued at 

least every five years. All valuations were carried out internally by qualified 

Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) qualified Valuers. 

Valuations of land and buildings were carried out in accordance with the 

methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional 

standards of RICS.

• Valuation is carried out on a selective on-going basis such that all assets 

are revalued at least once every five years, and on completion of a capital 

scheme above £100,000. In addition the top twenty valued assets are 

valued each year.

• Asset lives have been reviewed and standardised over the last two years 

and have been updated within the Asset Register.

Conclusion

We are satisfied that the revaluations of Land and Buildings have not given rise 

to material misstatement. 



Green

Assessment

 We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated

 We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic

 We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious  

 We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

24



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Leicestershire County Council and Leicestershire Pension Fund|  2018/19 

DRAFT

13

Significant findings – key judgements and estimates (Council)

Financial statements

Summary of management’s policy Audit Comments Assessment

Net pension 

liability –

£741.7m

Following the adjustment for the McCloud 

judgement the Council’s net pension 

liability at 31 March 2019 is £741.7m (PY 

£589.2m) comprising the Leicestershire 

Pension Fund Local Government and 

unfunded defined benefit pension 

scheme obligations. The Council uses 

Hyman Robertson to provide actuarial 

valuations of the Council’s assets and 

liabilities derived from these schemes. A 

full actuarial valuation is required every 

three years. The latest full actuarial 

valuation was completed as at 31 March 

2016. A roll forward approach is used in 

intervening periods, which utilises key 

assumptions such as life expectancy, 

discount rates, salary growth and 

investment returns. Given the significant 

value of the net pension fund liability, 

small changes in assumptions can result 

in significant valuation movements. 

We have 

• Hyman Robertson, an external actuary firm, provide actuarial advice to the Council via the 

Leicestershire Pension Fund. As such, this involves providing the Council with an actuarial 

valuation of the pension expense calculations.  The scope of the work is to undertake pension 

expense calculations, as instructed by the Administering Authority, for the Council, for the 

purposes of complying with IAS 19 (Employee Benefits) for the accounting period. Assessment 

of management’s expert 

• PwC are employed by the NAO on behalf of external audit suppliers to local government to 

provide support to auditors when assessing the competence and objectivity of actuaries 

producing IAS 19 figures in respect of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). Hyman 

Robertson have carried out a roll forward approach from previous actuarial valuation to allocate 

assets and liabilities between employers at triennial valuation.

Conclusion

• We are satisfied that the approach of the actuary and values applied are in line with PWC 

assumptions and that there are no significant outliers.

• As a result of the McCloud judicial judgement the Council have completed a revised actuarial 

assessment and have adjusted their financial statements to take into account the valuation.



Green

Assessment

 We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated

 We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic

 We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious  

 We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

Assumption Actuary 

Value

PwC 

range

Assessment

Discount rate 2.4% 2.4%-

2.5%



Pension increase rate 2.5% 2.4%-

2.5%



Salary growth 3.5% 3.4%-

3.5%



Life expectancy – Males currently aged 45 / 

65

23.8 years 23.7- 24.4 

years



Life expectancy – Females currently aged 

45 / 65

26..2 

years

26.2- 26.9 

years



25



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Leicestershire County Council and Leicestershire Pension Fund|  2018/19 

DRAFT

14

Significant findings – key judgements and estimates (Pension 
Fund)

Financial statements

Summary of management’s policy Audit Comments Assessment

Level 3 

investments

The Pension Fund has investments in unlisted 

shares, private equity funds and property 

which in total are valued on the balance sheet 

as at 31 March 2019 at £1,362m. These  

investments are not traded on an open market 

and the valuation of the investment is highly 

subjective due to a lack of observable inputs. 

In order to determine the value, management 

use fund managers who value within industry 

accepted guidelines. The value of the 

investment has increased by £119.2m in 

2018/19. 

• The values of the investment in private equity are based on valuations provided by the 

general partners to the private equity funds in which Leicestershire County Council 

Pension Fund has invested. These valuations are prepared in accordance with the 

International Private Equity and Venture Capital Valuation Guidelines, which follow the 

valuation principles of IFRS and US GAAP. 

• The values of the investment in hedge funds and infrastructure are based on the net 

asset value provided by the fund manager. Assurances over the valuation are gained 

from the independent audit of the value. 

• From the testing carried out we are satisfied that Level 3 investments are appropriately 

classified and the associated values are free from material statement



Green

Assessment

 We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated

 We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic

 We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious  

 We consider management’s process and key assumptions to be reasonable

26



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Leicestershire County Council and Leicestershire Pension Fund | 2018/19

DRAFT

15

Significant findings - Going concern - Council

Financial statements

Our responsibility
As auditors, we are required to “obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the appropriateness of management's use o f the going concern assumption in the preparation and 

presentation of the financial statements and to conclude whether there is a material uncertainty about the entity's ability to continue as a going concern” (ISA (UK) 570). 

Going concern commentary - Council

Management's assessment process

Management have responded to the questions we set out on 

going concern in our “Informing the Audit Risk Assessment” 

document which confirms:

• There are no events, of which they are aware, that could 

cause sufficient material uncertainty to cast significant 

doubt on the Councils ’s ability to continue as a going 

concern. This extends but is not limited to at least twelve 

months from the Balance Sheet date

• The Authority monitor cash flow on a daily basis, 

including maintaining an up to date forecast position for at 

least the next 12 months

Auditor commentary 

Management’s assessment has considered the applicable guidance relating to public sector bodies which presumes in 

local government is that the going concern assumption does apply unless there is specific evidence to the contrary. 

Management assessment has concluded that no material uncertainty in respect of going concern exists. 

The Council have completed their assessment of going concern through their annual Medium Term Financial Strategy 

(MTFS) which was approved by the County Council on 20 Feb 2019. This covers the next four year period to 2023. This 

shows managements approach to the impact of significant and ongoing central government reductions in funding.

The MTFS shows a balanced budget for 19/20 and 20/21 with a shortfall of £5m in 21/22 rising to £20m in 22/23. 

However, the MTFS includes plans to achieve the additional savings and income required through new savings under 

development. The MTFS also includes a contingency of £8m for risks and a contingency for growth of £20m. In

addition the Council has sufficient reserves (c.£120m) to mitigate this risk in the medium term.

As such we consider that the assessment undertaken by the Authority on going concern is a reasonable and valid and 

there are no indications of material uncertainty.

Work performed 

We reviewed management’s assessment by:

• Ensuring the assessment concurred with our knowledge 

of the Council

• Reviewing the Medium Term Financial Strategy for 

2019 to 2023 which was approved by Council in 

February 2019

Auditor commentary

• We are satisfied there is no material uncertainty about the Council’s ability to continue as a going concern

Concluding comments Auditor commentary

• We did not identify any events or conditions during the course of our audit that casted any significant doubt on the 

Council’s ability to continue as a going concern.

• There is no impact on our audit opinion which is unmodified in relation to Going Concern

27



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Leicestershire County Council and Leicestershire Pension Fund | 2018/19

DRAFT

16

Significant findings - Going concern – Pension Fund

Financial statements

Our responsibility
As auditors, we are required to “obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the appropriateness of management's use o f the going concern assumption in the preparation and 

presentation of the financial statements and to conclude whether there is a material uncertainty about the entity's ability to continue as a going concern” (ISA (UK) 570). 

Going concern commentary - Council

Management's assessment process

Management have responded to the questions we set out on 

going concern in our “Informing the Audit Risk Assessment” 

document which confirms:

• There are no events, of which they are aware, that could 

cause sufficient material uncertainty to cast significant 

doubt on the pension funds ability to continue as a going 

concern. This extends but is not limited to at least twelve 

months from the Balance Sheet date

Auditor commentary 

Management’s assessment has considered the applicable guidance relating to public sector bodies which presumes in 

local government is that the going concern assumption does apply unless there is specific evidence to the contrary. 

Management assessment has concluded that no material uncertainty in respect of going concern exists. 

The most recent actuarial valuation carried out under Regulation 62 of the Local Government Pension Scheme 

Regulations 2013 was as at 31 March 2016. This valuation revealed that the Fund’s assets, which at 31 March 2016 

were valued at £3,164 million, were sufficient to meet 76.2% of the liabilities (i.e. the present value of promised 

retirement benefits) accrued up to that date. The resulting deficit at the 2016 valuation was £989 million.

Each employer had contribution requirements set at the valuation, with the aim of achieving full funding within a specified 

time period as per the Funding Strategy Statement. Individual employers’ contributions for the period 1 April 2017 to 31 

March 2020 were set in accordance with the Fund’s funding policy as set out in its FSS. 

As such we consider that the assessment undertaken by the Authority on going concern is a reasonable and valid and 

there are no indications of material uncertainty.

Work performed 

We reviewed management’s assessment by:

• Ensuring the assessment concurred with our knowledge 

of the Pension Fund

• Reviewing the Actuarial Position

Auditor commentary

• The Council’s actuary, Hymans Robertson LLP completed the last triennial valuation as at 31 March 2016 and we are 

satisfied that the Funds Assets were sufficient to meet approximately 76.2% of the liabilities accrued up to that date.

• Since the last formal valuation, real bond yields have fallen placing a higher value on the liabilities but there have 

been strong asset returns over the 3 years.  Both events are of broadly similar magnitude with regards to the impact 

on the funding position.

• The next actuarial valuation will be carried out as at 31 March 2019. The Funding Strategy Statement will also be 

reviewed at that time. 

Concluding comments Auditor commentary

• We did not identify any events or conditions during the course of our audit that casted any significant doubt on the 

pension fund’s ability to continue as a going concern.

• There is no impact on our audit opinion which is unmodified in relation to Going Concern

28



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Leicestershire County Council and Leicestershire Pension Fund|  2018/19 

DRAFT

17

Other communication requirements

Financial Statements

We set out below details of other matters which we, as auditors, are required by auditing standards and the Code to communicate to those charged with governance of both the 

Council and Pension Fund.

Issue Commentary


Matters in relation to fraud  We have previously discussed the risk of fraud with the Corporate Governance Committee  We have not been made aware of any 

other incidents in the period and no other issues have been identified during the course of our audit procedures


Matters in relation to related 

parties

• We are not aware of any related parties or related party transactions which have not been disclosed


Matters in relation to laws and 

regulations

 You have not made us aware of any significant incidences of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations and we have not 

identified any incidences from our audit work. 


Written representations  Letters of representation has been requested from the Council and the Pension Fund, and these are included in the Corporate 

Governance Committee papers


Confirmation requests from 

third parties 

 We requested from management permission to send  confirmation requests to banks, lenders and investment bodies. This permission 

was granted and the requests were sent. We are awaiting some of these confirmations from the relevant institutions.


Disclosures  A number of disclosure amendments were made to both the Council and Pension Fund financial statements, as set out in appendix A.


Audit evidence and 

explanations/significant 

difficulties

• All information and explanations requested from management for the Council and the Pension Fund were  provided

29



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Leicestershire County Council and Leicestershire Pension Fund|  2018/19 

DRAFT

18

Other responsibilities of the Council under the Code

Financial statements

Issue Commentary


Other information We are required to give an opinion on whether the other information published together with the Councils audited financial statements 

(including the Annual Governance Statement, Narrative Report and Pension Fund Financial Statements), is materially inconsistent with 

the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

No inconsistencies have been identified. We plan to issue an unmodified opinion in this respect (see appendices C and D)


Matters on which we report by 

exception

We are required to report on a number of matters by exception in a numbers of areas:

 If the Annual Governance Statement does not meet the disclosure requirements set out in the CIPFA/SOLACE guidance or is 

misleading or inconsistent with the other information of which we are aware from our audit

 If we have applied any of our statutory powers or duties

We have nothing to report on these matters.

We are required to give a separate opinion for the Pension Fund Annual Report on whether the financial statements included therein are 

consistent with the audited financial statements.

Due to statutory deadlines the Pension Fund Annual Report is not required to be published until the 1st December 2019 and therefore this 

report has not yet been produced. We have therefore not given this separate opinion at this time and are unable to certify completion of 

the audit of the administering authority until this work has been completed. 


Specified procedures for 

Whole of Government 

Accounts 

We are required to carry out specified procedures (on behalf of the NAO) on the Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) consolidation

pack under WGA group audit instructions. 

As the Council exceeds the specified group reporting threshold of £500m we examine and report on the consistency of the WGA 

consolidation pack with the Council's audited financial statements.

Note that work is not yet completed: plans are in place to complete this work in August to meet the submission deadline of 13 September 

2019 


Certification of the closure of 

the audit

We are unable to certify the closure of the 2018/19 audit of Leicestershire County Council in the audit opinion, as detailed in Appendix C, 

as a result of the later deadlines for completion of WGA and Pension fund Annul Report work as set out above.

30



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Leicestershire County Council and Leicestershire Pension Fund|  2018/19 

DRAFT

19

Value for Money

Risk assessment 

We carried out an initial risk assessment in January 2019 and identified no significant 
risks in respect of specific areas of proper arrangements using the guidance 
contained in AGN03. We communicated this to you in our Audit Plan dated January 
2019. 

We have continued our review of relevant documents up to the date of giving our 
report, and have not identified any new significant risks where we need to perform 
further work.

Overall Conclusion 

Based on the work carried out we are satisfied that the Council had proper 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources. 

The text of our report, which confirms this, can be found at Appendix C.

Value for Money

Background to our VFM approach

We are required to satisfy ourselves that the Council has made proper arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. This is known as 
the Value for Money (VFM) conclusion. 

We are required to carry out sufficient work to satisfy ourselves that proper arrangements 
are in place at the Council. In carrying out this work, we are required to follow the NAO's 
Auditor Guidance Note 3 (AGN 03) issued in November 2017. AGN 03 identifies one single 
criterion for auditors to evaluate: 

“In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and deploys

resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.”

This is supported by three sub-criteria, as set out below:

Informed 

decision 

making

Value for 

Money 

arrangements 

criteria
Sustainable 

resource 

deployment

Working 

with partners 

& other third 

parties

31



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Leicestershire County Council and Leicestershire Pension Fund|  2018/19 

DRAFT

20

Independence and ethics

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors of the Council and the Pension Fund that we are required or wish to draw to your 

attention. We have complied with the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and confirm that we, as a firm, and each covered person, are independent and are able to express 

an objective opinion on the financial statements 

Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 issued in December 2017 which sets out supplementary guidance on ethical 

requirements for auditors of local public bodies.

Details of fees charged are detailed in Appendix B.

Independence and ethics

Audit and Non-audit services

For the purposes of our audit  of the Council and the Pension Fund we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Council and Pension 

Fund.

We can confirm that for both the Council and the Pension Fund we have not identified any audit related or non audit related services that we have carried out on behalf of the Council 

or the Fund for the period up until 31 July 2019. We have agreed with the Council we will complete the Certification of 2018/19 Teachers Pension Return, with work to be commence 

in the Autumn of 2019.

Service £ Threats Safeguards

Audit related

Certification of 2018/19 

Teachers Pension Return

5,000

(indicative)

Self-Interest (because this is a 

recurring fee)

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to 

independence as the fee  for this work is £5,000 in comparison to the total fee for the audit of 

£59,353 and in particular relative to Grant Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed 

fee and there is no contingent element to it. These factors all mitigate the perceived self-interest 

threat to an acceptable level.

32



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Leicestershire County Council and Leicestershire Pension Fund|  2018/19 

DRAFT

21

Audit Adjustments

We are required to report all non trivial misstatements to those charged with governance, whether or not the accounts have been adjusted by management. 

Impact of adjusted misstatements
All adjusted misstatements are set out in detail below along with the impact on the key statements and the reported net expenditure for the year ending 31 March 2019.  

Detail

Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement £‘000 Balance Sheet £’ 000

1 Council - Pension Liability Valuation – McCloud Judgement

The actuarial valuation of the pension liability for the Council had to be updated to assess the 

impact of the McCloud judicial judgement. This has resulted in a material adjustment to the 

pension liability.

Dr Non Distributed Cost        12,920

Cr Pension Liability               12,920

Cr Pension Liability                    174

Dr Revenue                                174

Cr Revenue 13,094

Dr Pension Reserve 13,094

Overall impact (£13,094) £13,094

Appendix A
33



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Leicestershire County Council and Leicestershire Pension Fund|  2018/19 

DRAFT

22

Audit adjustments - continued

Misclassification and disclosure changes

The table below provides details of misclassification and disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set of financial statements. 

Disclosure omission Detail Auditor recommendations Adjusted?

Council - Note 17 

Property, Plant and 

Equipment

There were a number of classification errors in the Property, Plant and 

Equipment note which meant that the disclosure did not adequately 

reflect activity.

We have recommended that the Council make amendments to 

the Note to adequately reflect the in year activity, and these 

changes have been made..

✓

Council - Disclosure 

enhancements

As part of our review of the financial statements we have noted some 

areas where further disclosures were required in existing notes or 

there were changes in narrative required to reflect CIPFA code 

changes for the year ending 31 March 2019

We have recommended some improvements to disclosures in 

the Council’s accounts, none of which are in our view 

significant enough to need to be drawn individually to the 

attention of the Corporate Governance Committee, and these 

changes have been made.

✓

Pension Fund –

Disclosure Omissions in 

Accounting Policies

There were a number of disclosure omissions in the draft financial 

statements for the pension fund in accounting policies including no 

policies on

- Contribution Income

- Taxation

- Management Expenses

- Cash and Cash equivalents

- Financial Assets and Liabilities

- Actuarial Present Value of Promised Retirement Benefits

- Additional Voluntary Contributions

- Contingent Assets and Liabilities

We have recommended that the Council make amendment to 

the accounting policy to include these omissions to be 

compliant with reporting requirements set out by the LG code

✓

Pension Fund –

Disclosure Omissions in 

Notes

There were a number of notes that were not included in the draft 

financial statements including;

- Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies 

- Assumptions Made about the Future and Other Major Sources of 

Estimation Uncertainty 

- Events after the Reporting Date

- External Audit Fee

We have recommended that the Council make amendment to 

the notes to include these omissions to be compliant with 

reporting requirements set out by the LG code

✓

34



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Leicestershire County Council and Leicestershire Pension Fund|  2018/19 

DRAFT

23

Fees

2017/18 Audit Fee 2018/19 Planned fee 2018/19 Final fee

Council Audit £76,950 £59,252 £63,752

Pension Fund £27,637 £21,280 £27,280

Total audit fees (excluding VAT) £104,587 £80,532 £91,032

Appendix B

We confirm below our final fees charged for the audit and confirm there were no fees for the provision of non audit services

Audit Fees

Required Additional Audit Work Description of Work Required Proposed fee

Council - Assessing the impact of the McCloud 

ruling 
The Government’s transitional arrangements for pensions were ruled discriminatory by the Court of 

Appeal last December. The Supreme Court refused the Government’s application for permission to 

appeal this ruling. As part of our audit we considered the impact on the financial statements along with 

any audit reporting requirements. 

£3,000

Pensions – IAS 19 Letters We are required to respond to requests received from other auditors of other bodies for assurance in 

respect of information held by the Pension Fund and provided to the actuary to support their individual 

IAS 19 calculations these will be billed in addition to the audit fee of the pension fund.

£6,000

PPE Valuation – work of experts The Financial Reporting Council has highlighted the need for more in depth work by audit firms in 

respect of PPE. We have increased the volume and scope of our audit work to reflect this. 

£1,500*

Total audit fees (excluding VAT) £10,500

The final audit fee represents a year on year reduction of £13,555 across both the Council and Pension Fund. 

The proposed planned audit fee reconciles to the financial statements. As part of our audit procedures we have had to carry out further procedures which were not included in 

the proposed fee for the 2018/19 audit, these are listed below, and are subject to PSAA approval.

* Fee in relation to PPE to be confirmed once work fully completed.

35



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Leicestershire County Council and Leicestershire Pension Fund|  2018/19 

DRAFT

24

Audit opinion – Leicestershire County Council

We anticipate we will provide the Council with an unmodified audit report 

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Leicestershire County Council

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Leicestershire County Council (the ‘Authority’) for 

the year ended 31 March 2019 which comprise the Movement in Reserves Statement, the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow 

Statement, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 

policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is 

applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the 

United Kingdom 2018/19.

In our opinion, the financial statements:

• give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority as at 31 March 2019 

and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended; 

• have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice 

on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19; and 

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs 

(UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 

‘Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements’ section of our report. We are 

independent of the Authority in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 

audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have 

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that 

the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) 

require us to report to you where:

• the Director of Corporate Resources use of the going concern basis of accounting in the 

preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or

• the Director of Corporate Resources has not disclosed in the financial statements any 

identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Authority’s ability to 

continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months 

from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Other information

The Director of Corporate Resources is responsible for the other information. The other 

information comprises the information included in the Statement of Accounts, the Narrative Report, 

the Annual Governance Statement, other than the financial statements our auditor’s report thereon 

and our auditor’s report on the pension fund financial statements. Our opinion on the financial 

statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly 

stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 

the financial statements or our knowledge of the Authority obtained in the audit or otherwise 

appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent 

material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in 

the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work 

we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we 

are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code of Audit 

Practice

Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office on behalf of the 

Comptroller and Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice) we are required to consider whether 

the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with the ‘Delivering Good Governance in 

Local Government:  Framework (2016)’ published by CIPFA and SOLACE or is misleading or 

inconsistent with the information of which we are aware from our audit. We are not required to 

consider whether the Annual Governance Statement addresses all risks and 

Appendix C
36



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Leicestershire County Council and Leicestershire Pension Fund|  2018/19 

DRAFT

25

controls or that risks are satisfactorily addressed by internal controls. 

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matter required by the Code of Audit Practice

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial 

statements and our knowledge of the Authority gained through our work in relation to the 

Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 

resources, the other information published together with the financial statements in the 

Statement of Accounts, the Narrative Report, the Annual Governance Statement for the 

financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial 

statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if:

• we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

• we make a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

• we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to 

law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at 

the conclusion of the audit; or; 

• we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 

2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or 

• we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014, in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.

Responsibilities of the Authority, the Director of Corporate Resources and Those 

Charged with Governance for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities [set out on page(s) x to x], the 

Authority is required to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs 

and to secure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs.

In this authority, that officer is the Director of Corporate Resources. The Director of Corporate 

Resources is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which includes the 

financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC 

code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19, for being 

satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Director of 

Corporate Resources determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements 

that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Director of Corporate Resources is responsible for 

assessing the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 

matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless there 

is an intention by government that the services provided by the Authority will no longer be 

provided. 

The Corporate Governance Committee is Those Charged with Governance. Those charged 

with governance are responsible for overseeing the Authority’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 

auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 

but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect 

a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on 

the Financial Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This 

description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements - Conclusion on the Authority’s 

arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

Conclusion 

On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance on the specified criterion issued by the 

Comptroller and Auditor General in November 2017, we are satisfied that the Authority put in 

place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Responsibilities of the Authority 

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for securing economy, 

efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and 

governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.

Appendix C

Audit opinion – Leicestershire County Council Continued

37

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities


© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Leicestershire County Council and Leicestershire Pension Fund|  2018/19 

DRAFT

26

Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of the Authority’s arrangements for securing 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to be 

satisfied that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency 

and effectiveness in its use of resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we 

considered, whether all aspects of the Authority's arrangements for securing economy, 

efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively.

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard 

to the guidance on the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in 

November 2017, as to whether in all significant respects the Authority had proper 

arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve 

planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. The Comptroller and Auditor 

General determined this criterion as that necessary for us to consider under the Code of Audit 

Practice in satisfying ourselves whether the Authority put in place proper arrangements for 

securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 

March 2019.

We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk 

assessment, we undertook such work as we considered necessary to be satisfied that the 

Authority has put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements - Delay in certification of completion 

of the audit

We are required to give an opinion on the consistency of the pension fund financial statements 

of the Authority included in the Pension Fund Annual Report with the pension fund financial 

statements included in the Statement of Accounts. The Local Government Pension Scheme

Regulations 2013 require authorities to publish the Pension Fund Annual Report by 1

December 2019.  As the Authority has not prepared the Pension Fund Annual Report at the 

time of this report we have yet to issue our report on the consistency of the pension fund 

financial statements. Until we have done so, we are unable to certify that we have completed 

the audit of the financial statements in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice. 

And

We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate in accordance with the 

requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice 

until we have completed the work necessary to issue our Whole of Government Accounts 

(WGA) Component Assurance statement  for the Authority for the year ended 31 March 2019. 

We are satisfied that this work does not have a material effect on the financial statements or on 

our conclusion on the Authority's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2019.

.

Use of our report 

This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance with Part 

5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 [and as set out in paragraph 43 of the 

Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit 

Appointments Limited]. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the 

Authority’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and 

for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume 

responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and the Authority's members as a body, for our 

audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

[Signature]

John Gregory, Key Audit Partner

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Local Auditor

Birmingham

[Date] 

Appendix C

Audit opinion – Leicestershire County Council Continued

38



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Leicestershire County Council and Leicestershire Pension Fund|  2018/19 

DRAFT

27

Audit opinion – Leicestershire Pension Fund

We anticipate we will provide the Pension Fund with an unmodified audit report 

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Leicestershire County Council 

on the pension fund financial statements of Leicestershire Pension Fund 

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Leicestershire Pension fund name (the 

‘pension fund’) administered by Leicestershire County Council (the ‘Authority’) for the 

year ended 31 March 2019 which comprise the Fund Account, the Net Assets 

Statement and notes to the pension fund financial statements, including a summary of 

significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied 

in their preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local 

authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19.

In our opinion, the financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the financial transactions of the pension fund during the year 

ended 31 March 2019 and of the amount and disposition at that date of the fund’s 

assets and liabilities, [other than liabilities to pay promised retirement benefits after the 

end of the fund year];

have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice 

on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19; and 

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) 

(ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further 

described in the ‘Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements’ 

section of our report. We are independent of the Authority in accordance with the 

ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the pension fund’s financial 

statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our 

other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that 

the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs 

(UK) require us to report to you where:

The Director of Corporate Resources has not disclosed in the pension fund’s financial 

statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the 

Authority’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for the 

pension fund for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the pension 

fund’s financial statements are authorised for issue.

Other information

The Director of Corporate Resources is responsible for the other information. The other 

information comprises the information included in the Statement of Accounts, the 

Narrative Report, the Annual Governance Statement other than the pension fund’s 

financial statements, our auditor’s report thereon and our auditor’s report on the 

Authority’s financial statements. Our opinion on the pension fund’s financial statements 

does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated 

in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the pension fund’s financial statements, our responsibility 

is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information 

is materially inconsistent with the pension fund’s financial statements or our knowledge 

of the pension fund obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are 

required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the pension fund’s 

financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the 

work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 

information, we are required to report that fact. 

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Appendix D
39



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Leicestershire County Council and Leicestershire Pension Fund|  2018/19 

DRAFT

28

Opinion on other matter required by the Code of Audit Practice published by 

the National Audit Office on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General (the 

Code of Audit Practice)

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the 

pension fund’s financial statements and our knowledge of the pension fund the other 

information published together with the pension fund’s financial statements in the 

Statement of Accounts, the Narrative Report and the Annual Governance Statement 

for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent 

with the pension fund’s financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if:

• we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

• we make a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Local 

Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the 

audit; or

• we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is 

contrary to law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in 

the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or; 

• we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or 

• we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014, in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.

Responsibilities of the Authority, the Director of Corporate Resources and 

Those Charged with Governance for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities 114 , the Authority is 

required to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs 

and to secure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of 

those affairs.  

In this authority, that officer is the Director of Corporate Resources is responsible for 

the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which includes the pension fund’s 

financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the 

CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 

2018/19, for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal 

control as the Director of Corporate Resources determines is necessary to enable 

the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error

In preparing the pension fund’s financial statements, the Director of Corporate 

Resources is responsible for assessing the pension fund’s ability to continue as a 

going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 

the going concern basis of accounting unless there is an intention by government 

that the services provided by the pension fund will no longer be provided. 

The Corporate Governance Committee is Those Charged with Governance. Those 

charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Authority’s financial 

reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the pension fund’s 

financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to 

fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 

assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 

conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement 

when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 

statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is 

located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at: 

www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s 

report.

Appendix D

Audit opinion Leicestershire Pension Fund continued

40

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities


© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for Leicestershire County Council and Leicestershire Pension Fund|  2018/19 

DRAFT

29

Use of our report 

This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance 

with Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 [and as set out in 

paragraph 43 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies 

published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited]. Our audit work has been 

undertaken so that we might state to the Authority’s members those matters we are 

required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest 

extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other 

than the Authority and the Authority's members as a body, for our audit work, for this 

report, or for the opinions we have formed.

[Signature]

John Gregory, Key Audit Partner

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Local Auditor

Birmingham office

[Date] 

Appendix D

Audit opinion Leicestershire Pension Fund continued

41



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Leicestershire County Council and Leicestershire Pension Fund | 2018/19

DRAFT

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member 

firms, as the context requires.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a 

separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one 

another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. 

grantthornton.co.uk

42



APPENDIX B 

Corporate Resources 
 

Leicestershire County Council, County Hall, Glenfield, Leicestershire LE3 8RB  
Email: resources@leics.gov.uk 
 
Chris Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
 

www.leics.gov.uk 
 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 

The Colmore Building  

20 Colmore Circus 

Birmingham 

B4 6AT 

 

Date: 26 July 2019 
My Ref:  
Your Ref:  
Contact: Chris Tambini 
Phone: 0116 3056199 
Fax:  
Email: Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk 

 
 

Dear Grant Thornton, 

Leicestershire County Council 

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 

This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit of the financial statements of 

Leicestershire County Council for the year ended 31 March 2019 for the purpose of expressing an 

opinion as to whether the Council financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects 

in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of 

Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19 and applicable law.  

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief having made such inquiries as we 

considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves: 

Financial Statements 

i. We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the Council’s financial statements in 

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of 

Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19 ("the Code"); in 

particular the financial statements are fairly presented in accordance therewith. 

ii. We have complied with the requirements of all statutory directions affecting the Council and 

these matters have been appropriately reflected and disclosed in the financial statements. 

iii. The Council has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that could have a 

material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance. There has been no 

non-compliance with requirements of any regulatory authorities that could have a material 

effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance. 

iv. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal 

control to prevent and detect fraud. 

v. Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those 

measured at fair value, are reasonable. We are satisfied that the material judgements used in 

the preparation of the financial statements are soundly based, in accordance with the Code 

and adequately disclosed in the financial statements. There are no other material judgements 

that need to be disclosed. 

vi. Except as disclosed in the financial statements: 

a. there are no unrecorded liabilities, actual or contingent 

b. none of the assets of the Council has been assigned, pledged or mortgaged 

43



APPENDIX B 

Corporate Resources 
 

Leicestershire County Council, County Hall, Glenfield, Leicestershire LE3 8RB  
Email: resources@leics.gov.uk 
 
Chris Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
 

www.leics.gov.uk 
 

 

c. there are no material prior year charges or credits, nor exceptional or non-recurring items 

requiring separate disclosure. 

vii. We confirm that we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the valuation of 

pension scheme assets and liabilities for IAS19 Employee Benefits disclosures are consistent 

with our knowledge.  We confirm that all settlements and curtailments have been identified and 

properly accounted for.  We also confirm that all significant post-employment benefits have 

been identified and properly accounted for.  

viii. Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and 

disclosed in accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards 

and the Code. 

ix. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which International 

Financial Reporting Standards and the Code require adjustment or disclosure have been 

adjusted or disclosed. 

x. We have considered the adjusted misstatements, and misclassification and disclosures 

changes schedules included in your Audit Findings Report. The Council financial statements 

have been amended for these misstatements, misclassifications and disclosure changes and 

are free of material misstatements, including omissions. 

The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions. 

xi. Actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and disclosed in accordance 

with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards. 

xii. We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or classification of 

assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements. 

xiii. We believe that the Council’s financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis 

on the grounds that current and future sources of funding or support will be more than adequate 

for the Council’s needs. We believe that no further disclosures relating to the Council's ability to 

continue as a going concern need to be made in the financial statements. 

Information Provided 

xiv. We have provided you with: 

a. access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the 

Council financial statements such as records, documentation and other matters; 

b. additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of your audit; 

and 

c. unrestricted access to persons within the Council from whom you determined it 

necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

xv. We have communicated to you all deficiencies in internal control of which management is 

aware.  

xvi. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial 

statements. 

xvii. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements 
may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. 
  

xviii. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are 
aware of and that affects the Council and involves: 

44



APPENDIX B 

Corporate Resources 
 

Leicestershire County Council, County Hall, Glenfield, Leicestershire LE3 8RB  
Email: resources@leics.gov.uk 
 
Chris Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
 

www.leics.gov.uk 
 

  

a. management; 

b. employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 

c. others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

xix. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, 

affecting the financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, 

regulators or others. 

xx. We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance 

with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing financial 

statements. 

xxi. We have disclosed to you the identity of the Council's related parties and all the related party 

relationships and transactions of which we are aware. 

xxii. We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects 

should be considered when preparing the financial statements. 

Annual Governance Statement 

xxiii. We are satisfied that the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) fairly reflects the Council's risk 

assurance and governance framework and we confirm that we are not aware of any significant 

risks that are not disclosed within the AGS. 

Narrative Report 

xxiv. The disclosures within the Narrative Report fairly reflect our understanding of the Council's 

financial and operating performance over the period covered by the Council financial 

statements. 

Approval 

The approval of this letter of representation was minuted by the Council’s Corporate Governance 

Committee at its meeting on 26 July 2019. 

Yours sincerely 

 

 
Chris Tambini 
Director of Corporate Resources, Leicestershire County Council 

26 July 2019 

 

 

 

Chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee 
26 July 2019 
 
(Signed on behalf of the Corporate Governance Committee) 

45



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX C 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 

The Colmore Building  

20 Colmore Circus 

Birmingham 

B4 6AT 

 

Date: 26 July 2019 
My Ref:  
Your Ref:  
Contact: Chris Tambini 
Phone: 0116 3056199 
Fax:  
Email: Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk 

 
Dear Grant Thornton, 
 
Leicestershire County Council – Pension Fund 
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 

 

This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit of the financial statements of 
Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund (‘the Fund) for the year ended 31 March 2019 for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the Fund financial statements are presented fairly in all 
material respects in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the CIPFA/LASAAC 
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19 and applicable law.  
 
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief having made such inquiries as we considered 
necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves: 

Financial Statements 

i. We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the Fund’s financial statements in 

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of 

Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19 ("the Code"); in particular the 

financial statements are fairly presented in accordance therewith. 

ii. We have complied with the requirements of all statutory directions affecting the Fund and these 

matters have been appropriately reflected and disclosed in the financial statements. 

iii. The Fund has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that could have a material effect 

on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance. There has been no non-compliance with 

requirements of any regulatory authorities that could have a material effect on the financial 

statements in the event of non-compliance. 

iv. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal 

control to prevent and detect fraud. 

v. We acknowledge our responsibilities for making the accounting estimates included in the financial 

statements.  Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those 

measured at fair value, are reasonable. Where it was necessary to choose between estimation 

techniques that comply with the Code, we selected the estimation technique considered to be the 

most appropriate to the Fund's particular circumstances for the purpose of giving a true and fair 

view.  Those estimates reflect our judgement based on our knowledge and experience about past 

and current events and are also based on our assumptions about conditions we expect to exist and 

courses of action we expect to take. 

vi. We are satisfied that the material judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are 

soundly based, in accordance with the Code and adequately disclosed in the financial statements. 

There are no other material judgements that need to be disclosed. 

vii. Except as disclosed in the financial statements: 

a. there are no unrecorded liabilities, actual or contingent

47



 

Corporate Resources 
 

Leicestershire County Council, County Hall, Glenfield, Leicestershire LE3 8RB  
Email: resources@leics.gov.uk 
 
Chris Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
 

www.leics.gov.uk 
 

b. none of the assets of the Council has been assigned, pledged or mortgaged 

c. there are no material prior year charges or credits, nor exceptional or non-recurring 

items requiring separate disclosure. 

viii. Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and 

disclosed in accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting 

Standards and the Code. 

ix. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which International 

Financial Reporting Standards and the Code require adjustment or disclosure have been 

adjusted or disclosed. 

The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions. 

x. Actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and disclosed in 

accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards. 

xi. We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or classification 

of assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements. 

xii. We believe that the Fund’s financial statements should be prepared on a going concern 

basis on the grounds that current and future sources of funding or support will be more than 

adequate for the Fund’s needs. We believe that no further disclosures relating to the Fund's 

ability to continue as a going concern need to be made in the financial statements. 

Information Provided 

xiii. We have provided you with: 

a. access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of 

the Fund financial statements such as records, documentation and other matters; 

b. additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of your audit; 

and 

c. unrestricted access to persons within the Fund from whom you determined it 

necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

xiv. We have communicated to you all deficiencies in internal control of which management is 

aware. 

xv. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the 

financial statements. 

xvi. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial 

statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. 

 

xvii. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are 

aware of and that affects the Fund and involves: 

a. management; 

48



 

Corporate Resources 
 

Leicestershire County Council, County Hall, Glenfield, Leicestershire LE3 8RB  
Email: resources@leics.gov.uk 
 
Chris Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
 

www.leics.gov.uk 
 

b. employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 

c. others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

xviii. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected 

fraud, affecting the financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, 

analysts, regulators or others. 

xix. We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-

compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing 

financial statements. 

xx. There have been no communications with The Pensions Regulator or other regulatory 

bodies during the year or subsequently concerning matters of non-compliance with any legal 

duty. 

xxi. We are not aware of any reports having been made to The Pensions Regulator by any of our 

advisors. 

xxii. We have disclosed to you the identity of the Fund's related parties and all the related party 

relationships and transactions of which we are aware. 

xxiii. We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects 

should be considered when preparing the financial statements. 

 

Approval 

The approval of this letter of representation was minuted by the Council’s Corporate Governance 

Committee at its meeting on 26 July 2019. 

 

Yours sincerely 

 

 

 
Chris Tambini 
Director of Corporate Resources, Leicestershire County Council 

26 July 2019 

 

 

 

Chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee 
26 July 2019 
 
(Signed on behalf of Leicestershire County Council as administering body of the Leicestershire 
County Council Pension Fund) 

 

49



This page is intentionally left blank



  
   

 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 26 JULY 2019 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES  
 

RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE 
  

 
Purpose of the Report 
 
1. One of the key roles of the Corporate Governance Committee is to ensure that 

the Council has effective risk management arrangements in place.  This report 
assists the Committee in fulfilling that role by providing a regular overview of 
key risk areas and the measures being taken to address them.  This is to 
enable the Committee to review or challenge progress, as necessary, as well 
as highlight risks that may need to be given further consideration.  This report 
covers: 
 

 The Corporate Risk Register (CRR) – summary of risks. An update on 
each risk is provided in the Appendix attached to this report; 

 Emerging risks – Climate Change and HS2 Phase 2B; 

 Risk Management Maturity Health Check. 
 
Corporate Risk Register (CRR) 
 
2. The Council maintains Departmental Risk Registers and a Corporate Risk 

Register (CRR).  These registers contain the most significant risks which the 
Council is managing, and which are ‘owned’ by Directors and Assistant 
Directors.   
 

3. The CRR is designed to capture strategic risk that applies either corporately or 
to specific departments, which by its nature has a long time span.  The CRR is 
a working document and therefore assurance can be provided that, through 
timetabled review, high/red risks will be added to the CRR as necessary.  
Equally, as further mitigation actions come to fruition and current controls are 
embedded, the risk scores will be reassessed, and this will result in some risks 
being removed from the CRR and reflected back within the relevant 
departmental risk register. 
 

4. Movements since the CRR was last presented to the Committee on 10 May 
2019 are detailed below:  

 
Risk Removed 
 

 Risk 3.7 (Children and Family Services) – Data Quality 

51 Agenda Item 9



 

If the quality of data in Children and Families (C&FS) Information 
Management System is too low to satisfy statutory requirements (e.g. data 
returns) this will impact upon service delivery. 
The Department has reduced the current risk score from 16 to 12. Tableau 
reports have been embedded; and are now accessible to Team Managers 
and Business Support. This is led by two Heads of Service who jointly 
oversee quality meetings. 
This risk has been removed from the Corporate Risk Register, but it will 
continue to be monitored through the Children & Family Services 
Departmental Risk Register. 

 
Risk Reworded.   
 

 Risk 1.6. – The absence of a robust Development Plan that takes account 
of improvements in practice, systems & processes, funding & 
commissioning, partnership development and the successful delivery of 
the associated capital programme could lead to sufficiency issues and 
continued pressures on the High Needs Block budget.   
 

5. The table below is a summary of all the risks on the CRR. The risks are 
numbered within each category and the most up to date position of each risk is 
shown in the Appendix attached to this report.  

 

Ref Department Risk Description 

Current 
risk 

Score 
June 
2019 

Target 
risk 
over 

next 12 
months 

Change 
in 

Current 
Risk 

Score 

1. Medium Term Financial Strategy  

1.1 All MTFS Delivery 25 25  

1.3 CE Failure to maximise developer contributions 16 10  

1.4 CR Claims for uninsured risks put pressure on reserves 16 16  

1.5 C&FS Child placements demand creates budget pressures 25 20  

1.6 C&FS Failure to achieve savings (high needs pupils) 20 16  

1.7 CR Failure to comply with IR35 regulations (self-employment) 20 12  

1.8 CR Partner financial difficulties impact Council services 16 16  

1.9 C&FS 
Failure to resolve immigration status of UAS children 
increases costs 

16 12 
 

2. Health and Social Care Integration 

2.2 A&C Inability to deliver improved outcomes and financial stability 16 16  

2.3 All Failure to meet demand from Welfare Reform Act 16 16  

3. ICT, Information Security 

3.2 All 
Failure to meet information security/ governance 
requirements 

16 12  

3.5 All Failure to maintain robust records management 15 10  

3.6 CR (ERP) system not implemented successfully 20 10  

4. Commissioning 

4.1 All Contractor/Supplier performance not obtained 15 12  

4.2 E&T Arriva are successful in concessionary travel appeal 15 10  

5. Safeguarding 

5.1 C&FS IICSA – seriously unknown historic issues identified 25 20 
 
 

 

52



 

 
 

Ref Department Risk Description 

Current 
risk 

Score 
June 
2019 

Target 
risk 
over 

next 12 
months 

Change 
in 

Current 
Risk 

Score 

 
6. Brexit 

6.1 All Impact of Brexit on public services 16 16  

7. People 

7.1 CR Sickness absence is not effectively managed 16 12  

7.2 All Failure to recruit & retain staff (E&T, A&C and C&FS) 15 15  

7.3 A&C Lack of sustainable external social care workforce 16 9  

8. Business Continuity 

8.1 CR Critical suppliers fail on business continuity planning 15 15  

9. Environment 

9.1 E&T Impact of Ash Dieback disease 15 10  

9.2 E&T Failure to hold/dispose of waste due to major incident 15 8  

10. Partnership 

10.1 C&FS Failure to secure confidence in mainstream SEND provision 16 6  

 
 

7.  Members at the previous meeting welcomed the additional challenge proposed 
for risks listed on the Corporate Risk Register and the introduction of Action 
Plans for departments to monitor progress against implementing further 
actions/additional controls and ultimately move the risk towards their target 
score.  During this quarter, Departments have commenced reviews of the 
Corporate/Strategic risks and work is underway to develop Action Plans.   

 
6. In accordance with the Committee’s request at its meeting on 10 May 2019, 

a presentation will be provided as part of this item on Risk 1.7 - If the Council is 
not compliant with the HM Revenue and Customs IR35 regulations regarding 
the employment of self-employed personnel then there is a risk of large 
financial penalties. 
 

Emerging Risks 
 
Climate Change 
 
7. Following the Council’s recent declaration of a climate emergency and the 

increasing realisation that climate change is happening now and at a speed and 
intensity not previously expected, there is the risk that County Council services 
will be negatively affected by the impacts of climate change, particularly as a 
result of the increase in extreme weather events.  There is also the associated 
risk that the Council may not be able to deliver on the commitments it has made 
in its climate emergency declaration due to the complexity and difficulty of 
some of the decisions that will need to be made.  This would also have 
reputational impacts.  The Council’s aim is to be carbon neutral by 2030. 
The Council has an Environment Strategy and Action Plan in place and is 
developing a plan to set out how it will achieve the commitments made in the 
climate emergency declaration. 

53



 

 
High Speed Two (HS2 Phase 2B) 
 
8. There is a possible/emerging risk around the Government abandoning the HS2 

Phase 2b project through Leicestershire.  While this would avoid considerable 
disruption across the north west of the county for a number of years during 
construction, it would result in potentially significant benefits for Leicestershire 
and the East Midlands not being realised. The likelihood of this will depend on 
whether the new Prime Minister supports the project.  Once the new Prime 
Minister is announced the risk can be assessed and any possible mitigating 
actions considered. 
 

Risk Management Maturity Health Check Update 
 
9. Members of the Committee were given a copy of the Risk Management 

Partners consultant’s report for information at the meeting on 10 May 2019.  A 
detailed action plan has been prepared for Chief Officers to consider the 
actions they proposed. 

10. The action plan covers: 

a. with assistance from their designated risk champions and management 
teams, Chief Officer’s should review their own department’s results 
from the anonymous online managers’ survey, and take necessary 
actions to make improvements in those areas with the least positive 
responses; 

b. better definition and clarity is required around the Council’s risk 
appetite. Options include: - 

i. retain as a single statement for the council as a whole; 

ii. develop individual risk appetite statements for risk categories; 

iii. if (ii) is chosen, a longer-term development could be to further 
explore the relationship between arranging more self-insurance 
to align to the agreed risk appetite;  

c. development of risk management training programmes - for example 
develop in house resource, commission externally, e-learning etc.; 

d. development of guidance for the Council on identifying, assessing and 
managing risk within its contracts and partnerships; 

e. integration of risk management practices across all business planning, 
programme management activities; 

f. Consideration of investment in a centralised Risk Management IT 
system. 

11. Work on the actions will continue over the summer and autumn and the 
Committee will be updated on progress.  

 
 

54



 

 
 
Recommendations 

 
It is recommended that the Committee: 
 

a) Approves the current status of the strategic risks facing the County Council; 
 

b) Makes recommendations on any areas which might benefit from further 
examination and identify a risk area for presentation at its next meeting; 

 
c) Notes the updates provided on Climate Change and HS2 Phase 2B; 

 
d) Notes the update provided on the risk management health check. 
 

Resources Implications 
 

None 
 
Equality and Human Rights Implications 

 
None 
 
Circulation under the Local Issues Alert Procedure 

 
None 
 
Background Papers 
 
Report of the Director of Corporate Resources – ‘Risk Management Update’ – 
Corporate Governance Committee, 19 February, 13 May, 23 September and 25 
November 2016; 17 February, 26 May, 22 September and 17 November 2017; 29 
January, 23 April and 25 July 2018, 24 October 2018, 18 January 2019 and 10 May 
2019. 
 
Officers to Contact 

 
Chris Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources   
Tel : 0116 305 6199  
E-mail : chris.tambini@leics.gov.uk  
 
Neil Jones, Head of Internal Audit and Assurance Service 
Tel: 0116 305 7629 
Email: neil.jones@leics.gov.uk 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix - Corporate Risk Register Update  
  
 

55

mailto:ctambini@leics.gov.uk
mailto:neil.jones@leics.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



CORPORATE RISK REGISTER – UPDATE ON RISKS JUNE 2019       
 

Dept./ 
Function 

CRR 
Risk 
No 

Risk Description Current 
Risk  

Score 
(incl. 

changes) 

Update 
Based on risks discussed at department’s management teams during June 2019 

 
 

Direction of 
Travel ** 

(Residual Risk 
Score over the 

next 12 months) 

1. Medium Term Strategy 
 

All 1.1 
 

Risk around the MTFS 
including the ability to deliver 
savings through service 
redesign and Transformation as 
required in the MTFS, impact of 
the living wage and other 
demand/cost pressures 
including legal challenges. 

25 
 

MTFS 
  

 2018/19 Outturn position reflects strong financial performance 

 Some challenges for individual savings, but overall target expected to 
be met. 

 Demand for funding of Capital Schemes continues to increase 

 Expectation is for a one-year settlement and a delay to Fair Funding 
reforms, subjecting Local Government to further uncertainty. 

 A four- month public consultation on the Council’s future financial 
priorities will commence in June and the outcome will be used to 
inform the update of the MTFS in Autumn. 

 
Transformation 
 
Transformation Unit is working with all departments to continue to deliver 
existing savings targets and to identify new opportunities for savings 
through the development of relevant business cases. 

 
 
 

 
Expected to 

remain 
high/red 

 
 

CE 1.3 If the Council fails to maximise 
developer contributions, then 
there could be a failure to fund 
corporate infrastructure projects 
 

16 
 

Following the outcome of the recent consultation process, County 
Council’s approval is being sought for the Council’s revised planning 
obligations policy for developer contributions in July following approval by 
Cabinet in June. 
 
The Council is also setting up a new Growth Unit which will assist with 
securing developer contributions for major infrastructure projects 

 

 
 

Expected to 
move to medium/ 

Amber 
 

CR 1.4 If claims relating to uninsured 
risks materialise or continue to 
increase then LCC will need to 
find increased payments from 
reserves, impacting on funds 
available to support services 
 
 

16 
 
 

Committee had previously been informed that on 17 April 2019, the Court 
of Appeal found in favour of Equitas in relation to the legal case over the 
allocation of claims to MMI’s reinsurance programme. This meant that 
MMI’s balance sheet was not in such a favourable position and the 
potential for a further levy on claims increased.  
 
However, on 8 May 2019, the Court of Appeal granted MMI permission to 
appeal the 17 April finding to the Supreme Court. It is anticipated that the 
case will be heard by the Supreme Court in the first half of next year. 

 
 

 
 

Expected to 
remain high/red 

57



Dept./ 

Function 

CRR 

Risk 
No 

Risk Description Current 

Risk  
Score 
(incl. 

changes) 

Update 

Based on risks discussed at department’s management teams during June 2019 
 
 

Direction of 

Travel ** 
(Residual Risk 
Score over the 

next 12 
months) 

 

 

 

C&FS 1.5 Social Care: 
If the number of high cost social 
care placements (e.g. external 
fostering, residential and 16+ 
supported accommodation) 
increases (especially in relation 
to behavioural and CSE issues) 
then there may be significant 
pressures on the children’s 
social care placement budget, 
which funds the care of 
vulnerable children. 

25 
 
  
 

Although the number of residential placements has reduced since 
December 2018 (58) to 54, the number of children with high cost care 
packages (to manage risk to young people’s safety) remains high. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Expected to 
remain  
high/red 

 C&FS 1.6 Education:  Risk reworded  
The absence of a robust 
Development Plan that takes 
account of improvements in 
practice, systems & processes, 
funding & commissioning, 
partnership development and 
the successful delivery of the 
associated capital programme 
could lead to sufficiency issues 
and continued pressures on the 
High Needs Block budget.   

20 
 

 
 

Progress has been made in identifying locations and providers for 
specialist resources provisions and new specialist schools in line with 
published plans.  There is a clear plan, with timescales for the 
development of these provisions over the next 3 years, with some new 
places available from September 2019. Developments are in some cases 
subject to DFE consent and planning permissions and capital costs are 
subject to the available funding envelope.   
 
In the short term there is a continued demand for specialist placements 
that is greater than current LA place availability. Work is ongoing to 
manage this but at present this represents a continued financial risk. 

 
 
 
 

Expected to 
remain  
high/red 

 

CR 1.7 If the Council is not compliant 
with the HRMC IR35 
regulations regarding the 
employment of self-employed 
personnel, then there is a risk 
of large financial penalties 

20 
 

Information and guidance on responsibilities has recently been issued to 
managers, with discussions being held with DMTs and then a review of 
existing appointments will be undertaken to ensure compliance. 
 

 

 
Expected to 

move to medium/ 
Amber 

58



Dept./ 

Function 

CRR 

Risk 
No 

Risk Description Current 

Risk  
Score 
(incl. 

changes) 

Update 

Based on risks discussed at department’s management teams during June 2019 
 
 

Direction of 

Travel ** 
(Residual Risk 
Score over the 

next 12 
months) 

 

 

 

CR 1.8 If public sector partners and 
major providers of services to 
the public sector get into 
financial difficulties, there could 
be an impact on both the 
Council’s financial position and 
services. 
 

16 
 

No further update 
 

 

 
Expected to 

remain  
red/high 

C&FS 1.9 If the immigration status of 
unaccompanied asylum-
seeking children (UASC) who 
arrive in the County is not 
resolved, then the Council will 
have to meet additional long-
term funding in relation to its 
housing and care duties.   
 

16 
(Decrease
d from 20) 

The UASC numbers have increased over the last 6 months. The Council 
has 92 UASC in care. The financial risk has decreased slightly as 
Government funding for UASC will increase in the current financial year. 

 

 
 

Expected to 
remain 

 red/high 

2. Health & Social Care Integration 
 

 All 2.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Impact on County Council 
services and MTFS of the 
Better Care Together (medium 
term) transformation plan in 
Leicester, Leicestershire and 
Rutland (LLR), could lead to 
inability to deliver improved 
outcomes and financial 
sustainability. 

 

16 
 
 
 
  

NHS England & NHS Improvement will be issuing their joint national 
implementation framework for the NHS Long Term Plan at the end of 
June/early July. This will set out their required structure and content for 
each STP or Integrated Care System (ICS) area to produce a local 
delivery plan by the autumn.  
  
During May and June partners have discussed how to define place within 
the LLR ICS, how best to develop joint working at the tier of place. Within 
Leicestershire there has been an externally facilitated Operational 
Development (OD) workshop to scope a refreshed approach to joint 
commissioning. Place based governance arrangements are being revised.  

 

 
 

Expected to 
remain  
high/red 

59



Dept./ 

Function 

CRR 

Risk 
No 

Risk Description Current 

Risk  
Score 
(incl. 

changes) 

Update 

Based on risks discussed at department’s management teams during June 2019 
 
 

Direction of 

Travel ** 
(Residual Risk 
Score over the 

next 12 
months) 

 

 

 

 The new accountable officer across the 3 LLR Clinical Commissioning 
Groups (CCGs) has been appointed, to start in post in the autumn, with 
some early involvement and induction on a part time basis over the 
summer period. Options for the future structure of local CCGs will be 
considered by CCG Boards in July, with reconfiguration and management 
of change expected to take 12 months.  
  
Financial delivery in 2019/20 is the top risk for NHS partners with a large 
Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention (QIPP) programme to 
deliver, a proportion of which is still unidentified as at June 2019. LLR is 
already being escalated on the assurance of NHS financial control totals 
for 2019/20. 
 

All 2.3 Challenges caused by the 
Welfare Reform Act 2012 and 
the Welfare Reform and Work 
Act 2016.   

16 The start of the Government’s ‘managed migration’ process, to move 
existing claimants from the legacy benefits to Universal Credit has been 
delayed until January 2020.  The Government plans to complete managed 
migration to Universal Credit by the end of 2023.   
 
The High Court has ruled (May 2019), that the draft rules proposed to 
compensate people who migrated to Universal Credit without transitional 
protection are unlawful.  The Secretary of State is considering her 
response.   

 

 
 

Expected to 
remain  
high/red 

 

3. ICT, Information Security 
 

CR 
 

3.2 
 

If the Council fails to meet the 
information/cyber security and 
governance requirements, then 
there may be breach of the 
statutory obligations  
 

16 The Council has recruited a dedicated Technical Security Officer with a 
focus on cyber security. 
 
A report was taken to Chief Officers from the Data Protection Officer. As 
part of that report, increased reporting surrounding information security 
incidents will occur quarterly at DMTs, with a senior responsible officer 

 

 
 

Expected to 
move to  

60



Dept./ 

Function 

CRR 

Risk 
No 

Risk Description Current 

Risk  
Score 
(incl. 

changes) 

Update 

Based on risks discussed at department’s management teams during June 2019 
 
 

Direction of 

Travel ** 
(Residual Risk 
Score over the 

next 12 
months) 

 

 

 

assigned in each department tasked with driving down major incidents. 
Regarding training on Information Security and Data Protection latest data 
on the Council’s Learning Hub shows 85% compliance against a target of 
90%.  However, ongoing requirements to review training every 12 months 
could impact on the compliance rate. 
 
Further work is progressing under the Information Governance Board. 
This focuses on implementation of the Information Asset Register solution 
which is currently being built ready for trial during July/August, 
Surveillance Camera Systems and collaboration systems. 
 

medium/ 
amber 

All 3.5 If the Council fails to maintain 
robust records management 
processes to effectively 
manage information under its 
custodianship, personal data 
may not be processed in 
compliance with the Data 
Protection Act 1998 resulting in 
regulatory action and/or 
reputational damage. 

15 
 

Following an earlier report to Chief Officers in January 2019, the highest 
risks relating to hard copy files have been identified. Resources are being 
put in place to deal with these files. Further risk assessments will continue 
to be undertaken. 

 

 
 

Expected to 
move to  
medium/ 
amber 

CR 3.6 If a replacement (ERP) system 
is not implemented successfully 
the Council will not reap the 
benefits and the Council’s 
financial and HR activity could 
be negatively impacted upon 
 

20 
 

The design of the new system is nearing completion with a target to 
resolve all critical and high gaps by July 2019. The focus then will be on 
the business change impact arising from this new solution, the testing of 
the final solution and shaping the go-live strategy.  
Due to certain gaps identified in the functionality of the ERP system, there 
might be additional time required to complete the design and go-live 
readiness activities. These are being discussed with the programme team 
and the implementation partner and the path forward is expected to be 
agreed in the July Board. 

 
 
 
 

Expected to 
remain  
high/red 

61



Dept./ 

Function 

CRR 

Risk 
No 

Risk Description Current 

Risk  
Score 
(incl. 

changes) 

Update 

Based on risks discussed at department’s management teams during June 2019 
 
 

Direction of 

Travel ** 
(Residual Risk 
Score over the 

next 12 
months) 

 

 

 

4. Commissioning & Procurement 
 

CR 
 

4.1 
 

If the Authority does not obtain 
the required value and level of 
performance from its providers 
and suppliers, then the cost of 
services will increase, and 
service delivery will be 
impacted. 
 

15 No further update to the previously reported position   
 

 
Expected to 

move to medium/ 
amber 

E&T 4.2 If Arriva is successful in its 
concessionary travel appeal, 
then reimbursement costs for 
the total scheme could increase 
significantly. 

15 The 2017/18 Arriva appeal was unsuccessful. The 2018/19 scheme 
appeal response was submitted, and the position is similar to 2017/18 as 
there has been little new evidence from Arriva.  Regarding 2019/20 
scheme, the intention to appeal has been lodged by Arriva in May 2019, 
and a similar approach taken as little new evidence has been put forward 
by Arriva. The Council will consider new evidence if it is forthcoming. 
 
Currently analysing minimal new evidence which has not altered the view 
that the grounds for appeal are weak. However, now engaging specialist 
consultancy resource to support analysis and review approach to 2019/20 
appeal. Support is not required for the 2018/19 appeal as no new 
evidence/data has been supplied. 
 
Department for Transport (DfT) have asked up to accede to Arriva’s 
request for a stay in having to submit 2019/20 appeal details for two 
months which has been agreed to allow the consultancy work to be 
completed in a reasonable timescale. It is likely that the stay will still result 
in an appeal being formally submitted later this year against the 2019/20 
scheme. 
 

 
 
 

Expected to 
move to  
medium/ 
amber 

 

62



Dept./ 

Function 

CRR 

Risk 
No 

Risk Description Current 

Risk  
Score 
(incl. 

changes) 

Update 

Based on risks discussed at department’s management teams during June 2019 
 
 

Direction of 

Travel ** 
(Residual Risk 
Score over the 

next 12 
months) 

 

 

 

5. Safeguarding 
 

C&FS 
 

5.1 
 

Historical:  
If as a result of a concerted 
effort to explore abuse by the 
Independent Inquiry into Child 
Sexual Abuse (IICSA) and 
Police Operations, then 
evidence of previously unknown 
serious historical issues of child 
sexual exploitation (CSE) or 
abuse is identified 

25 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

The Inquiry announced (April 2019) that the Preliminary Hearing into 
institutional responses to allegations of child sexual abuse did not place 
on 23 May but will be held on 24th September.  The Public Hearing for the 
Janner Investigation remains scheduled for February 2020. 

The Council, as a Core Participant to the Inquiry, continues to meet with 
the IICSA team to ensure they receive the information they require for 
their investigation in a timely and accurate manner. The Council has 
engaged experienced Barristers to advise during this phase and for the 
preparation for the public hearing scheduled for February 2020. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Expected to 
remain  
high/red 

 
 

6. Brexit 
 

All 6.1 Uncertainty and significant 
knock on consequences on 
public services (including 
potential legal, regulatory, 
economic and social 
implications), and the local 
economy as a result of the 
United Kingdom leaving the 
European Union. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

16  
 
 

Conversations are ongoing with Ministry of Housing, Communities and 
Local Government (MHCLG).  Brexit Planning Group including the 
Council’s sub-group Resilience Partnership Group to be re-established to 
plan for No Deal Brexit on 31/10/2019. 
 

 
 
 

 
Expected to 

remain  
high/red 

 

63



Dept./ 

Function 

CRR 

Risk 
No 

Risk Description Current 

Risk  
Score 
(incl. 

changes) 

Update 

Based on risks discussed at department’s management teams during June 2019 
 
 

Direction of 

Travel ** 
(Residual Risk 
Score over the 

next 12 
months) 

 

 

 

7. People 
 

CR 
(ALL) 

7.1 If sickness absence is not 
effectively managed then staff 
costs, service delivery and staff 
wellbeing will be impacted 

16 
 

The Intensive Support Project is ongoing.  Changes to the Attendance 
Management Policy have been agreed with the Trade Unions in principal 
and will now progress to formal agreement and implementation. Chief 
Officers will review the initial target of 8 days per FTE in Autumn 2019.   

The corporate target remains at 7.5 days FTE. Absence levels are 
decreasing consistently but still some distance from the corporate target.   

A Peer Review of attendance management has been scheduled with 
North Yorkshire County Council 

 

 
 

Expected to 
move to medium/ 

Amber 
 

All 7.2 Recruitment and retention 
 
If departments are unable to 
recruit and retain skilled staff 
promptly then some services 
will be over -reliant on the use 
of agency staff resulting in 
budget overspends and poor 
service delivery  
 

 
15 
 

C&FS (risk score =15) 

The Department has made good progress against the recruitment and 
retention strategy and vacancy rates have dropped to 6% and below - 
there continues to be pressures around increasing workloads and staff 
absence due to illness or maternity that places pressure on the service. 
Concern that with high numbers of newly qualified staff, additional support 
for them and the service has been required and continues to be required 
for the next year. It is hoped that as the numbers of newly qualified staff 
reduce this will not have such a significant impact on the service as it 
currently does. There is national professional work ongoing about 
difficulties to the recruitment and retention of experienced social workers 
to further address the retention element the recruitment and retention 
strategy is currently being updated. 

A&C (risk score =12). The risk score has been reduced from 16 as the 
vacancy rate is currently low. 

 
 
 
 

Expected to 
remain high/red 

 
 

64



Dept./ 

Function 

CRR 

Risk 
No 

Risk Description Current 

Risk  
Score 
(incl. 

changes) 

Update 

Based on risks discussed at department’s management teams during June 2019 
 
 

Direction of 

Travel ** 
(Residual Risk 
Score over the 

next 12 
months) 

 

 

 

 A&C 7.3 If the department does not have 
a sustainable external 
workforce to work with it may 
be unable to meet its statutory 
responsibilities. 

16 
 

A detailed action is being developed for this risk 

 
Expected to 

move to  
medium/ 
Amber 

8. Business Continuity  
 

CE 8.1 If suppliers of critical 
services do not have robust 
business continuity plans in 
place, the Council may not be 
able to deliver services 
 

15 Structure for oversight and agreement of all contracts is not yet in place.  
Enforcement and rigor of guidance is not fully in place. 
Commissioning Support Unit are implementing a system in September to 
enable consistent flagging of Key Providers, at the point of Procurement, 
to the Resilience and Business Continuity Team.  It is the responsibility of 
Commissioning Support Unit to inform Resilience and Business Continuity 
Team of the Key Providers who will then be assessed for criticality and 
compliance against industry standards.  Resilience and Business 
Continuity Team will work with Contract Managers within departments for 
necessary improvements/ information. 

 
 
 
 

Expected to 
remain  
high/red 

9. Environment 
 

E&T 9.1 If the ash dieback disease 
causes shedding branches or 
falling trees, then there is a 
possible risk to life and 
disruption to the transport 
network. 

15 Development and implementation of cross departmental action plan is 
progressing. The risk to life is still fundamental – as the key unknown 
factor is when the majority of the Council’s Ash stock will fail due to the 
disease. Work is underway across the Council to understand costs over 
time, deal with increasing sampling schedules / future increases in 
mitigation measures, consider communications/training linked to the 
Council as well as privately held Ash stock. The Business Intelligence 
Service team have also developed dashboard(s), improving the 
information available on our Ash stock and condition going forward. 
 

 

 
 

Expected to 
move to medium/ 

amber 

65



Dept./ 

Function 

CRR 

Risk 
No 

Risk Description Current 

Risk  
Score 
(incl. 

changes) 

Update 

Based on risks discussed at department’s management teams during June 2019 
 
 

Direction of 

Travel ** 
(Residual Risk 
Score over the 

next 12 
months) 

 

 

 

 

Department 
 

    A&C = Adults & Communities E&T = Environment and Transport  

CE =  Chief Executives PH = Public Health    

CR =  Corporate Resources All = Consolidated risk                                             

C&FS=  Children and Family Services 
 

 

E&T 9.2 If there was a major incident 
which results in unplanned site 
closure (e.g. fire) then the 
Council may be unable to hold 
or dispose of waste.  

15 
 

No change to the previously reported position  

 
 

Expected to 
move to medium/ 

Amber 

10. Partnerships 
 

C&FS 10.1 If the Local Authority and 
partners do not succeed in 
developing an inclusive culture 
across all schools, education 
providers and partner agencies 
(including the Parent Carer 
Forum), then it will be difficult to 
secure parental confidence in 
the ability of the ‘whole system’ 
to meet the needs of the large 
majority of children with SEND 
in a mainstream school context. 

16 
 

Consultation with stakeholders on the new proposed provision has 
emphasised the importance of continued focus and capacity to support 
mainstream schools in being inclusive. This will be a continued feature of 
the high needs block development plan. 
 
There is a continued pressure upon school budgets due to austerity and, 
consequently, the demand for EHCP Needs Assessment and high needs 
block funding continues to be a significant issue.  The High Needs Block 
Development Plan sets out a range of measures to mitigate and manage 
but as yet, the risk of budget overspend continues.   

 

 
 

Expected to 
move to green 

 

66



Dept./ 

Function 

CRR 

Risk 
No 

Risk Description Current 

Risk  
Score 
(incl. 

changes) 

Update 

Based on risks discussed at department’s management teams during June 2019 
 
 

Direction of 

Travel ** 
(Residual Risk 
Score over the 

next 12 
months) 

 

 

 

** The arrows explain the direction of travel for the risk, i.e. where it is expected to be within the next twelve months after further mitigating actions, so that: 

o A horizontal arrow shows that not much movement is expected in the risk; 

o A downward pointing arrow shows that there is an expectation that the risk will be mitigated towards ‘medium’ and would likely be removed from 

the register; 

o An upwards pointing arrow would be less likely, but is possible, since it would show that the already high scoring risk is likely to be greater. 

 

RISK REMOVED 

Dept. CRR Risk 

No 
Risk Description Current Risk 

Score 
Reason  Date of 

Removal 

C&FS  3.7 If the quality of data in Children 
and Families (C&FS) Information 
Management System is too low to 
satisfy statutory requirements (e.g. 
data returns) this will impact upon 
service delivery 

16  
 
 
 

The current risk score has been downgraded from 16 to 12. - 
tableau reports have been embedded; and are now accessible to 
Team Managers and Business Support. This is led by two Heads 
of Service who jointly oversee quality meetings 
 
This risk has been removed from the Corporate Risk Register, but 
it will continue to be monitored through the Children & Family 
Services Departmental Risk Register 

26 July 2019 

67



Dept./ 
Function 

CRR 
Risk 

No 

Risk Description Current 
Risk  

Score 
(incl 

changes) 

Update 
Based on risks discussed at department’s management teams during 

June 2019 
 

 

Direction of 
Travel 

(Residual Risk 
Score over the 

next 12 

months) 

 

 

 

 

68



 

  

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 26 JULY 2019 
 

JOINT REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 
AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 
LOCAL CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 
Purpose of the Report 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to seek the Committee’s support for the revised 

Local Code of Corporate Governance to be presented to the County Council for 
approval in September 2019. 

 
Background 
 
2. Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework (the 

Framework), published by CIPFA in association with Solace in 2007, sets the 
standard for local authority governance in the UK.  CIPFA and Solace reviewed 
the Framework in 2015 to ensure it remains ‘fit for purpose’ and published a 
revised edition in spring 2016 – see link below.  
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/d/delivering-good-
governance-in-local-government-framework-2016-edition 
 

3. The Framework is intended to help local government in taking responsibility for 
developing and shaping an informed approach to governance which is aimed at 
achieving high standards in a measured and proportionate way.  It defines 
seven core principles that should underpin governance within a local 
government organisation but provides a structure to assist authorities 
individually in reviewing and accounting for their own unique approach.  The 
overall aim is to ensure that: 
 

 resources are directed in accordance with agreed policy and according to 
priorities; 

 there is clear accountability for the use of those resources to achieve 
desired outcomes for service users and communities; 

 there is sound and inclusive decision making. 
 
4. How an organisation designs its governance structure is for it to decide, 

although it should be able to demonstrate that it complies with the core and 
sub-principles contained within the Framework.  It should therefore develop 
and maintain an up-to-date local code of governance, including arrangements 
for ensuring ongoing effectiveness.  The term ‘local code’ essentially refers to 
the governance structure in place, as there is an expectation that a formally 

  
69 Agenda Item 10

http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/d/delivering-good-governance-in-local-government-framework-2016-edition
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/d/delivering-good-governance-in-local-government-framework-2016-edition
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/d/delivering-good-governance-in-local-government-framework-2016-edition


 
 

set out local structure should exist, although in practice it may consist of a 
number of local codes or documents. 

 
The County Council’s Revised Local Code of Corporate Governance 

 
5. The Corporate Governance Committee (the Committee) is responsible for 

the promotion and maintenance of high standards within the Authority in 
relation to the operation of the Council’s Local Code of Governance (the 
Local Code). It has a responsibility to review the Local Code as necessary 
and make recommendations to the County Council to ensure that it remains 
relevant to the Council’s work and practices. 
 

6. The Local Code is based on the above-mentioned Framework (CIPFA/Solace), 
and its seven core principles: 

 

 Behaving with integrity 

 Ensuring openness 

 Defining outcomes 

 Determining effective interventions 

 Developing capacity 

 Managing risks and performance 

 Transparency and effective accountability 
 
7. The Committee last considered the revised Local Code at its meeting on 26 

May 2017.  This was subsequently approved by the Cabinet on 15 September 
2017 and full Council on 27 September 2017. 

 
8. Based on self-assessments of assurances for 2017/18 and 2018/19 received 

from all Directors, officers have identified additional examples of the 
Council’s commitment to achieving good governance (e.g. policies, 
procedures, behaviours, actions and values by which the Council is 
controlled and governed).  These have been used to update the existing 
Local Code.  
 

9. The Council’s revised Local Code of Governance (2019) is attached as an 
Appendix to this report and the key changes made to this are highlighted in 
bold text. Once approved by the full County Council, this will be published on 
the Council’s website.   Development will continue throughout 2019-21.   
 

Recommendations  
 
10. The Committee is requested to consider the Council’s revised Local Code of 

Corporate Governance and recommend its approval by the Cabinet on 13 
September and full Council on 25 September 2019.   

 
Resource Implications 
 
11.  None. 
 

70



 
 

Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 
12.  None. 
 
Background Papers 
 
Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework CIPFA/SOLACE, 
2007, 2012 and 2016; 
 
Circulation Under the Local Issues Alert procedure 
 
None 
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Chris Tambini, Director of Finance 
Tel : 0116 305 6199  
Email : chris.tambini@leics.gov.uk 
  
Lauren Haslam, Director of Law and Governance 
Tel : 0116 305 6240 
Email : lauren.haslam@leics.gov.uk 
 
Neil Jones, Head of Internal Audit & Assurance Service  
Tel : 0116 305 7629 
Email : neil.jones@leics.gov.uk 
 
List of Appendices  
 
Appendix – Revised Local Code of Corporate Governance (June 2019) 

71

mailto:chris.tambini@leics.gov.uk
mailto:lauren.haslam@leics.gov.uk
mailto:neil.jones@leics.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Local code of 
corporate governance 

June 2019 
 
 
 
 

 

Lead Officer: Director of Law and Governance 

Department: Chief Executive’s 

E-mail Address: Lauren.Haslam@leics.gov.uk 

Created: June 2019 

Review Arrangements: Biennial or as required in the 
event of changes in legislation 
etc 

APPENDIX 
73

mailto:Lauren.Haslam@leics.gov.uk


2 Local Code of Corporate Governance 

2019  

C. 
Defining outcomes 

in terms of 
sustainable 

economic, social and 
environmental 

G. 
Implementing good 

practices in 
transparency, reporting, 

and audit, to deliver 
effective accountability 

A. 
 

 

D. 
Determining the 
interventions 

necessary to optimize 
the achievement of 

the intended 
outcomes 

B. 
 

 

F. 
Managing risks and 

performance through 
robust internal 

control and strong 
public financial 
management 

E. 
Developing the 

entity’s capacity, 
including the 

capability of its 
leadership and the 

individuals 
within it 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 In 2014, the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the International 

Federation of Accountants (IFAC) collaborated to produce The International Framework: Good 

Governance in the Public Sector. The International Framework defines governance as comprising 

the arrangements put in place to ensure that intended outcomes for stakeholders are defined and 

achieved. It states that in order to deliver good governance in the public sector, both governing 

bodies and individuals working for public sector entities must try to achieve their entity’s objectives 

while acting in the public interest at all times. This implies primary consideration of the benefits for 

society, which should result in positive outcomes for service users and other stakeholders. The 

diagram below illustrates the core principles of good governance in the public sector and how they 

relate to each other: Principles A and B permeates implementation of principles C to G. It illustrates 

that good governance is dynamic, and that an entity, should be committed to improving governance on 

a continuing basis through a process of positive outcomes for service users and other stakeholders. 

 

 

Achieving the intended Outcomes While 

Acting in the Public Interest at all Times 
 

74



3 Local Code of Corporate Governance 

2019  

1.2 In 2016, CIPFA in association with the Society of Local Authority Chief Executives (SOLACE) took 

the International Framework’s core principles (and sub-principles) and interpreted them for a local 

government context. It revised and reissued its ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local 

Government; Framework’ (the Framework). The Framework sets the standard for local authority 

governance in the UK. The concept underpinning the Framework is to support local government in 

taking responsibility for developing and shaping an informed approach to governance, aimed at 

achieving the highest standards in a measured and proportionate way. The purpose of the 

Framework is to assist authorities individually in reviewing and accounting for their own unique 

approach, with the overall aim to ensure that: 

o Resources are directed in accordance with agreed policy and according to priorities 

o There is sound and inclusive decision making 

o There is clear accountability for the use of those resources in order to achieve desired 

outcomes for service users and communities 

The Framework must be applied when compiling annual governance statements.   Full details of the 

seven principles and the respective sub-principles, together with the actions and behaviours that can 

demonstrate compliance is provided in the Appendix with extensive details provided of how the 

County Council (Council) complies to them. 

 

2. LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL’S APPROACH TO 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

2.1 In Leicestershire, good governance is about how the Council ensures that it is doing the right things, 

in the right way and for the benefit of the communities it serves. 

2.2 Good governance will invariably lead to high standards of management, strong performance, the 

effective use of resources and good outcomes which in turn will lead to increased public trust. 

2.3 Good governance flows from having shared values and culture. It requires having in place a 

framework of overarching strategic policies and objectives underpinned by robust systems, 

processes and structures for delivering these. It also enables the Council and the public to monitor 

whether the strategic policies and objectives have been delivered. 

2.4 The Council recognises that the delivery of its strategic policies and objectives cannot be done in 

isolation. It needs to engage with other statutory bodies and the voluntary and community sector as 

well as private companies commissioned to deliver services. As such the Council has an interest in 

ensuring that these partners have in place good governance arrangements. 

2.5 The Council is committed to the seven core principles of good practice contained in the CIPFA 

framework and will test its governance arrangements against this framework and report annually. 

To confirm this, we test our governance arrangements by: 

• Developing and maintaining an up-to-date local code of governance, including 

arrangements for ensuring ongoing effectiveness. Our Local Code has been written to reflect 

the Council’s own structure, functions, and the governance arrangements in existence. It’s 

comprised of the policies, procedures, behaviours, actions and values by which the Council is 

controlled and governed. 

 

 

 

 

75



4 Local Code of Corporate Governance 

2019  

Elected members are collectively responsible for the governance of the Council. 

To ensure the Code is effectively maintained, the Director of Law & Governance 

(Monitoring Officer), in conjunction with the Director of Corporate Resources (Chief 

Financial Officer) and the Head of Paid Service, with advice from the Head of Internal 

Audit Service will: 

o Update the Code with developments in best practice and leading guidance 

o Undertake an annual review of corporate governance that incorporates the Annual 
Governance Statement 

The Corporate Governance Committee will have responsibility for providing 
assurance to the Council in respect of: 

o The effectiveness of the Council’s Corporate Governance arrangements 

o The approval of the Annual Governance Statement 
 

• Reviewing existing governance arrangements. The Council will monitor its governance 

arrangements for their effectiveness in practice and will review them on a continuing basis to ensure 

that they are up to date. This review will include an assessment of the effectiveness of the 

processes contained within the Local Code. This includes annual assessments such as: 

o Departments’ and corporate reviews of assurance arrangements 

o Head of Internal Audit Service (HoIAS) Annual Report including an opinion on the overall 
adequacy and effectiveness of the control environment 

o Assurance statements by the Chief Financial Officer, Monitoring Officer and the HoIAS that 
they are complying with their professional requirements 

o Annual review of the Constitution 

o Scrutiny Annual Report 

o External Audit Annual Letter 

o The opinions of other review agencies and inspectorates, including governance issues via ad 
hoc cases / disciplinary issues, police investigations 

• Reporting publicly on compliance with our own code on an annual basis and on how we 

have monitored the effectiveness of our governance arrangements in the year and on 

planned changes. Regulation 6(1)(a) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires the 

Council to conduct a review at least once in a year of the effectiveness of our systems of internal 

control and include a statement reporting on the review with our published statement of 

Accounts. This is known as the Annual Governance Statement. The Chief Executive and Leader 

of the Council certify the Annual Governance Statement to accompany the Annual Accounts 

which will: 

o assess how the Council has complied with our Local Code 

o provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s governance arrangements 

o where the reviews of the governance arrangements have revealed gaps which will impact on 
the authority achieving its objectives, action is to be taken to ensure effective governance in 
future 

o provide details of how continual improvement in the systems of governance will be achieved.

76



Appendix 
1 

5 Local Code of Corporate Governance  

2019 

 

 

Rationale: Local government organisations are accountable not only for how much they spend, but also for how they use the resources under their 

stewardship. This includes accountability for outputs, both positive and negative, and for the outcomes they have achieved. In addition, they have an overarching 

responsibility to serve the public interest in adhering to the requirements of legislation and government policies. It is essential that, as a whole, they can 

demonstrate the appropriateness of all their actions across all activities and have mechanisms in place to encourage and enforce adherence to ethical values and 

to respect the rule of law. 

  Principle A: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law  
 

 

Sub-principle Examples of the Council’s commitment to achieving good governance in practice is demonstrated below 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Behaving 

with 

Integrity 

• The Council’s Constitution contains Codes of Conduct for both Members and Officers to ensure that high standards of conduct are maintained. 

• Members (new) receive training on the Code of Conduct. 

• There is a separate Members’ Code of Conduct for Planning Matters. All Members serving on the Development Control and Regulatory 

Board are required to have attended the training on the Code. Members will need updating regarding the new National Planning 

Policy Framework. 

• Registers of Members’ interests and records of gifts and hospitality are published on the Council’s website and updated annually. 

• Members’ Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and Personal Interests that might lead to bias are recorded in minutes of 

meetings which are available on the Council’s website. Minutes show declarations of interest were sought, and appropriate declarations 

made. The Members’ Register of Interests including gifts and hospitality is made available for public inspection and published on the 

Council’s website. 

• The Corporate Governance Committee supports and promotes the maintenance of high standards of conduct by Members and has 

agreed criteria for assessing complaints against Members, which is published on the Council’s website.  

• The Employee’s (Officer’s) Code of Conduct sets out standards of behaviour and conduct that the Council expects of its employees. This 

includes including confidentiality, data protection, freedom of information, and fraud prevention. These areas are subject to mandatory training 

via e- learning and monitoring and reporting of compliance is undertaken. Reference is made to the Code in the Manager’s Induction 

Checklist. 

• An employee policy is in place for acceptance of gifts and hospitality. The Monitoring Officer reviews the registers of interests and gifts and 

hospitality on an annual basis. Regular items appear on the Council’s intranet and in the Managers’ Digest reminding staff of the Register of 

Interests, Register of Gifts and Hospitality and the Whistleblowing Procedure and arrangements are in place to enable staff to raise issues of 

concern and report wrongdoing. 

77



Appendix 
1 

6 Local Code of Corporate Governance  

2019 

 

 

 

 
• The Council has a ‘Behaviour in the Workplace’ Policy and Procedure. 

• We have arrangements in place to enable staff to raise issues of concern and report wrongdoing. 

• Standard decision-making reporting format is in place (training provided also) to ensure that all those responsible for taking decisions have 

the necessary information on which to do so. Key decisions are supported by various different assessments e.g. EHRIA, HR, Financial 

etc. depending on the decision. 

• A formal complaints policy which is publicly accessible is in place and an annual report on complaints is produced for all areas and reported to 
Corporate Governance Committee and Scrutiny Commission and is published. 

• The Council has in place an Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy Statement and Strategy supplemented by further policies and procedures to 

mitigate the risks of bribery and corruption and money-laundering which are publicised across the organisation in order to conform with 

requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice – ‘Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption’ (2014).  

• A mandatory Fraud Awareness e-learning module for staff exists that is regularly reviewed to ensure it remains fit-for-purpose. 

• Senior Officers and Elected Members (Corporate Governance Committee) receive regular fraud updates as part of a regular risk 
management report. 

• The Council’s Organisational Values and behaviours have been refreshed and continue to be embedded via he Council’s People 
Strategy and are available on SharePoint). 

• Regular Chief Executive’s newsletter ‘News for All’ contains information for staff and Corporate Management Team Road shows 

throughout the county (for public) and County Hall (for staff). 

 

 

 

 
Demonstrating 

strong 

commitment to 

ethical values 

• The Member Code of Conduct includes Principles and rules of behaviour which cover, Integrity; Selflessness; Objectivity; Accountability; 

Openness; Honesty and Leadership. Members, in signing the Code, agree to comply with these principles. Members Code of Conduct 

will be reviewed in light of the report of the Committee on Standards in Public Life – Ethical Standards in Local Government. 

• Employees Code of Conduct and Part 5B of the Constitution refers to the key principles in public life and standards. 

• The promotion of high standards of conduct is one of the key areas of responsibility for the Corporate Governance Committee. 

• The Council’s Constitution sets out delegations of the executive, committees and senior officers, and the decision-making process to be 

applied. It also emphasises that the Council will act within the law. Work has commenced on a fundamental review of Chief Officer 

delegated powers and as part of that review there will be a reminder of the need to record officer decision where appropriate. 

• Training was also provided on challenging homophobia, biphobia and transphobia.  A training event on ‘PREVENT’ is planned for 
early 2019/20. 

78



Appendix 
1 

7 Local Code of Corporate Governance  

2019 

 

 

• A Whistleblowing Policy is published on the Council’s website for staff.  Staff are regularly reminded of the Policy, its purpose and how to 

escalate concerns. The Council also subscribers on a voluntary basis to Public Concern at Work which is the lead organisation for 

whistleblowing issues.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Respecting the 

rule of law 

• The Council’s Political Structure and Roles are available on the Council’s website and includes membership details and functions 

of all major committees as well as roles and responsibilities of Cabinet and other members. 

• The Constitution identifies the Director of Law and Governance as the Council’s Monitoring Officer and sets out the role of the 

Monitoring Officer. The role, with membership of the Corporate Management Team, is to ensure that the Council respects the rules 

of law. 

• A Supplier Code of Conduct has been approved communicated and work continues to embed the Code to ensure 

providers of services act with integrity and in compliance with high ethical standards expected by the Council. 

• The Council’s exposure to the risk of serious and organised crime has been assessed and a range of actions agreed to mitigate 

the potential risks. The Council is a member of the Leicester, Leicestershire & Rutland (LLR) Strategic Partnership Board for 

Serious and Organised Crime and a LLR Delivery Plan is in place.  

• A Single Point of Contact has been forged with Leicestershire Police with regard to serious and organised crime. 

• A Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement has been approved to ensure that there is no slavery or human 

trafficking in its own direct provision of services or its supply chain. 

• The Council has in place an Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy Statement and Strategy.  This is the overarching document that is 

supplemented by other polices on Anti-Money Laundering, Anti-Bribery, and Whistleblowing.  

• The Officer Code of Conduct requires Officers to have due regard the Contract Procedure Rules and other polices when procuring goods 

and services. 

• Appropriate Officers monitor reports to ensure propriety of decision making and that legal advice is included where necessary and 
appropriate. E.g. the Monitoring Officer, the Chief Financial Officer and Head of Democratic Services. All members and Chief Officers are 
required annually to complete the ‘Related Party Disclosure Form’. 

• The Council has appointed a Panel of Independent Persons and engaged external consultants to provide training. The role of the 

Independent Members also includes acting as the Independent Person when a recommendation is made to dismiss a Statutory 

Officer. 

• The Council maintains records of legal advice provided by officers to ensure it respects the rule of law. 

79



Appendix 
1 

8 Local Code of Corporate Governance  

2019 

 

 

Rationale: Local government is run for the public good; Organisations therefore should ensure openness in their activities. Clear, trusted channels of 

communication and consultation should be used to engage effectively with all groups of stakeholders, such as individual citizens and service users, as well as 

institutional stakeholders 

  Principle B: Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement  
 

 

Sub-principle Examples of the Council’s commitment to achieving good governance in practice is demonstrated below 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Openness 

• Adoption of a clear and consistent reporting format in relation to committee reports. 

• Agendas, reports (and minutes) are also published on the council’s website in advance. Meetings are open to the public except in relation 

to exempt items. 

• A ‘forward plan’ of items is in place and dates for submitting, publishing and distributing timely reports are set and adhered to. 

• Records of decisions and supporting materials are available in the Decisions Enquiry System which can be found on the Council’s website. 

• Regular meetings are held with relevant Lead Members to brief them on developments in their service area and of issues of concern. 

• The Council’s Strategic Plan and Outcomes Framework publicly sets out priorities, goals and values. A new Outcomes 
Framework was agreed by Council in December 2017. 

• A detailed Annual Report and Performance Compendium outline the delivery on progress and outcomes against the Strategic Plan is 
published and scrutinised.  

• The Scrutiny Commission/Committees submit an annual report to the Council on the work undertaken. Reports to and decisions 

taken by the Council, Cabinet, Scrutiny Bodies and the Development Control and Regulatory Board are available on the Council’s 

website. 

• The Council uses social media to reach a growing number of residents and stakeholders. It also publishes a council newsletter and has 

an active website. 

• An annual Council Tax leaflet is published on the Council’s website showing how resources are deployed and the Council’s accounts are 

scrutinised and published. 

• Freedom of Information practices are in place to publish responses to requests. 

• Relevant data is published to the Council’s website in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Transparency Code 

(2014). 

80



Appendix 
1 

9 Local Code of Corporate Governance  

2019 

 

 

• The Council has guidance available for applicants wishing to make use of the Community Right to Challenge to express an interest in 

running local authority services. 

• Leicestershire Equalities Challenge Group increase the inclusion and representation of people with protected 

characteristics in the council’s engagement and consultation. 

 
 

Engaging 

comprehensively 

with institutional 

stakeholders 

• A number of priority partnerships have been identified and are supported to ensure that outcomes are achieved efficiently and effectively. 

• The Council has in place wide stakeholder lists for engagement purposes and is represented on a wide variety of bodies with relevant 
stakeholders. 

• A variety of arrangements are in place to engage with and involve other stakeholders including the business sector, health agencies, 

the police, district and parish councils, rural communities and voluntary and community sector. The stakeholders were consulted with 

regard to the new Outcomes Framework. 

• Variety of planning and governance mechanisms in place through partnership groups such as the Health and 

Wellbeing Board, Integration Executive, Leicester & Leicestershire Enterprise Partnership, Safer Communities 

Board etc. A new Children and Families Partnership has also been established.  

81



Appendix 
1 

10 Local Code of Corporate Governance  

2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Engaging 

stakeholders 

effectively, 

including 

individual 

citizens and 

service users 

• Engaging with customers before planning and commissioning services is encouraged by the Council’s Communications, 

Consultation and Engagement group. A Consultation and Engagement team is in place to provide support on these matters 

across the Council. The Group will review the impact and outcome of consultations including lessons learnt and feedback via an 

Annual Report. 

• A wide range of techniques are used for dialogue with the community including a major budget/priorities consultation exercise, 

community-based surveys, customer service feedback arrangements and individual service user groups. 

• Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment (EHRIA) practices enable the Council to meet its statutory obligations, aid the Council 

in understanding issues of interest to the public and help the Council to shape service delivery. The Council supports an Equalities 

Challenge Group to enable engagement with and challenge from a wide range of communities to inform service reviews. 

• Quarterly residents’ surveys are undertaken to gauge satisfaction on key areas. Regular media and web monitoring is in place to pick 

up informal feedback. 

• The Council has agreed a Consultation and Engagement Strategy and all reports to member bodies must reflect the outcome of any 

consultation undertaken. 

• The Council has adopted a set of Consultation Principles that provide a clear framework for residents, service users and staff with 

regard to public consultations. 

• A corporate task group, bringing together expertise in communication, engagement, research and survey design, equalities issues and 

legal issues, provides support and guidance and co-ordinates resources to ensure robust public consultations. 

• Results of major consultations are published in bespoke reports, which are available via the Council’s website. 

• New children and families’ partnership in place to improve planning and joint working such as around SEN and Early 
Help.  

• Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) chapters and Housing & Economic Development Needs Assessment 
(HEDNA) recently produced.  JSNA now produced on a rolling basis, with chapters developed over a three-year period.   

82



Appendix 
1 

11 Local Code of Corporate Governance  

2019 

 

 

Rationale: The long-term nature and impact of many of organisation’s responsibilities mean that it should define and plan outcomes and that these should be 

sustainable. Decisions should further the authority’s purpose, contribute to intended benefits and outcomes, and remain within the limits of authority and 

resources. Input from all groups of stakeholders, including citizens, service users, and institutional stakeholders, is vital to the success of this process and in 

balancing competing demands when determining priorities for the finite resources available 

 

  Principle C: Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental benefit                                  

 

Sub-principle Examples of the Council’s commitment to achieving good governance in practice is demonstrated below 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Defining 

Outcomes 

• The Council’s overall vision is reflected in the Council’s Strategic Plan (to 2022) which sets out five priority outcomes and 

is complemented by a Medium Term Financial Strategy, Commissioning Strategy, Communities Strategy and 

Transformation Programme.  These are underpinned by specific departmental service/ business plans and 

strategies.  Outcome Advisory Boards are being established to support the alignment of departmental plans to the five 

priority outcomes. 

• The NHS Long Term Plan (published in January 2019) includes several areas which are likely to have an impact on the 
Council, both in terms of joint working, operationally in the delivery of care, and as a strategic commissioner of services. Each 
local NHS system is expected to respond to the Long-Term Plan setting out its local implementation approach and financial 
plans during Autumn 2019.  

• A separate Communities Strategy sets out the Council’s approach to supporting communities and underpins working with the 

voluntary and community sector. 

• The Strategies set out defined outcomes with supporting performance measures. 

• Performance and progress against the strategies is published in the Council’s Annual Delivery Report and Performance Compendium 
and Statement of Accounts. 

• The Council communicates with and takes account of feedback to review outcomes, so they reflect progress and wider changes. 

• Departmental Management Teams and Cabinet Lead Members receive regular reports on the status of performance indicators and 

outcomes and have a process in place to address poor performance. 

• A variety of engagement, consultation and communication channels are in place to ensure that service users are aware of the financial 

and policy context and to help manage expectations. An annual budget media briefing and consultation on the budget is undertaken. 

83



Appendix 
1 

12 Local Code of Corporate Governance  

2019 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Sustainable 

economic, 

social and 

environmental 

benefits 

• A four-year capital programme is derived primarily from the Council’s Strategic Plan and the Council’s Capital Strategy and aims to ensure 

sustainable benefits. Investment in Land and Buildings is set out in the Corporate Asset Management Plan. Investment in infrastructure is 

included in the Infrastructure Plan and the Local Transport Plan, which provides the long - term strategy within which the Council manages 

and maintains its transport network. Proposals are being developed for a Growth Unit within the Council aimed at ensuring that 

public services and infrastructure are effectively planned over the short, medium and long term across Leicestershire. 

• Environment and Equalities Strategies are in place as well as an Enabling Growth Plan which sets out how the Council will support 

growth of the economy. All of the Council’s plans seek to ensure an effective balance of economic, social and environmental benefits. 

• Equality and Human Rights impact assessments and monitoring is in place to ensure an overview of fair access to services. 

• Social return on investment analysis and ensuring social value in contracts is an important element of the Council’s approach. 

• The Council has agreed a Consultation and Engagement Strategy and all reports to member bodies must reflect the outcome of any 

consultation undertaken. Officers’ meets regularly to ensure that consultations are undertaken on key changes to service provision and 

that such consultations are coordinated and comply with the Policy and existing best practice. Reports on new policy or changes to existing 

policies need to reflect how the policy will impact on different sectors in the community and local areas affect

84



Appendix 
1 

13 Local Code of Corporate Governance  

2019 

 

 

Rationale: The organisation achieves its intended outcomes by providing a mixture of legal, regulatory, and practical interventions. Determining the right mix of 

these courses of action is a critically important strategic choice that the organisation has to make to ensure intended outcomes are achieved. They need robust 

decision-making mechanisms to ensure that their defined outcomes can be achieved in a way that provides the best trade-off between the various types of 

resource inputs while still enabling effective and efficient operations. Decisions made need to be reviewed continually to ensure that achievement of outcomes 

is optimised 

 

  Principle D - Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes  

 

Sub-principle Examples of the Council’s commitment to achieving good governance in practice is demonstrated below 

 
 
 
 

Determining 

and Planning 

interventions 

• A robust medium term financial planning and service planning process is in place. 

• Well-established governance of decision making is in place for making service decisions through DMTs, Project Boards and the 

Council’s Transformation and decisions are made based on an evidence and business case basis using defined tools and 

templates. 

• A new Strategic Commissioning and contracting approach is being embedded into the organisation including commissioning strategies 

and a clear commissioning cycle involving service review, evidence and consultation. 

• The range of decision making information provided per option includes service user, staff and other stakeholder impacts, completion 

of Equality Assessments, consultation output and analysis of resource implications. 

• A new Business Intelligence Service is in place to provide insight, data analysis, forecasting and modelling support. 

• Feedback and complaints mechanisms/report in place to allow quality issues to be identified. 

 

 

 
Optimising 

achievement 

of intended 

outcomes 

• The Council has a good record of developing and delivering outcomes as well as managing within agreed budget parameters. 

• The Council’s performance management processes ensure comparative benchmarking of outcomes against similar areas to feed 

into service planning and budgeting. 

• The Council’s commitment to social value is embedded in the corporate Commissioning and Procurement Strategy. The Council 

has introduced a Social Value Policy statement which was approved by Cabinet in October 2018. This commitment is also 

reflected in the guidance provided to staff undertaking procurement activity in the Council’s Commissioning Toolkit .and guidance. 

• The Council’s Contract Procedure Rules requires that when procuring a service due regard is paid as to how the contract will improve the 

economic, social and environmental well-being of Leicestershire as required by the Public Service (Social Value) Act 2012. Achievement 

of social value is monitored regularly. 

85



Appendix 
1 

14 Local Code of Corporate Governance  

2019 

 

 

Rationale: Local government needs appropriate structures and leadership, as well as people with the right skills, appropriate qualifications and mind-set, to 

operate efficiently and effectively and achieve their intended outcomes within the specified periods. A local government organisation must ensure that it has both 

the capacity to fulfil its own mandate and to make certain that there are policies in place to guarantee that its management has the operational capacity for the 

organisation as a whole. Because both individuals and the environment in which an authority operates will change over time, there will be a continuous need to 

develop its capacity as well as the skills and experience of the leadership of individual staff members. Leadership in local government entities is strengthened 

by the participation of people with many different types of backgrounds, reflecting the structure and diversity of communities. 

  Principle  E. Developing the entity’s capacity including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it  
  
 

 

Sub-principle Examples of the Council’s commitment to achieving good governance in practice is demonstrated below 

 
 

 
Developing the 

entity’s capacity 

• The Council’s People Strategy and Delivery Plan is in place. The Employment Committee receives regular reports, as appropriate, on 

elements of the People Strategy and the associated action plan. 

• A regular Employee Survey helps identify staff and manager capacity and support needs. 

• The Council monitors a variety of metrics including staff caseloads and customer activity to ensure that it has sufficient capacity in place at 

the right time. 

• Support arrangements are in place to allow deployment of interim capacity where required. 

86



Appendix 
1 

15 Local Code of Corporate Governance  

2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Developing 

the capability 

of the entity’s 

leadership 

and 

other individuals 

• The Council provides learning and development opportunities to elected councillors in accordance with its agreed Member 

Learning and Development Strategy. Compulsory training is provided to relevant members on Planning and Regulatory Matters 

and on Pensions. 

• Regular briefings are provided to members on the key issues and challenges facing the Council through Members Digest. The new 
Members Digest has been designed to allow members to share it with Parish Councils and others within the community 
so that there is an increased awareness of what is happening in the Council. Members are requested to submit Annual 
Reports which provide constituents with an opportunity to see what their local councillor has done.  

• Council Learning and Development plans are informed by the MTFS; Strategic Vision; Departmental key aims; service plans; and 

individual Performance and Development Reviews (PDR). 

• Induction training is provided for all new staff appropriate to their role and responsibilities, with access to on-going Learning and 

Development activities to enhance skills. 

• The Council has established a clear set of values and behaviours, embedded in a performance management framework. 

Additionally, a revised leadership and management development offer is being established. 

• There is a new corporate Annual Performance Review (APR) system in place to appraise the performance of all staff. 

This is done annually and supported by one to one meetings held throughout the year. APR completion rates are 

monitored and reported to Departmental Management Teams.   

• Cabinet responsibilities are reviewed annually by the Leader of the Council. Job descriptions for the Scrutiny Chairmen, 

Deputy Chairmen and Spokespersons have been reviewed and re-issued to relevant members. 

• The Council encourages and supports a diverse workforce and variety of workplace support groups, such that it has been recognised 

as a sector leader by Stonewall. 

• The Council’s Equalities Board actively monitors and supports a diverse workforce and recruitment processes have been strengthened to 

ensure fair representation of different groups. 

• The Council has run a range of support programmes to ensure effective representation of women in senior management. 

• The Council is reviewing its Leadership and Management capability, as part of the Council’s People Strategy. 

• Senior Manager Conferences are held twice a year and the Council has recently launched a new Manager’s forum – Community 
of Practice – to assist in the development of managers.  These are held on a quarterly basis. 

 

87



Appendix 
1 

16 Local Code of Corporate Governance  

2019 

 

 

Rationale: Local government needs to ensure that the organisations and governance structures that it oversees have implemented, and can sustain, an 

effective performance management system that facilitates effective and efficient delivery of planned services. Risk management and internal control are 

important and integral parts of a performance management system and crucial to the achievement of outcomes. Risk should be considered and addressed as 

part of all decision-making activities. 

A strong system of financial management is essential for the implementation of policies and the achievement of intended outcomes, as it will enforce financial 

discipline, strategic allocation of resources, efficient service delivery, and accountability. It is also essential that a culture and structure for scrutiny is in place as 

a key part of accountable decision making, policy making and review. A positive working culture that accepts, promotes and encourages constructive challenge 

is critical to successful scrutiny and successful delivery. Importantly, this culture does not happen automatically, it requires repeated public commitment from 

those in authority. 

Principle F. Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial management  
 

Sub-principle Examples of the Council’s commitment to achieving good governance in practice is demonstrated below 

 
 

 
Managing 
Risks 

• The Council has a Risk Management Policy and Strategy with regular updates and reporting which is reviewed annually. Regular 

progress reports are provided on Counter Fraud Initiatives, Business Continuity and other related matters. 

• Corporate Governance Committee and Corporate Management Team actively engages and conducts detailed scrutiny of the Corporate 

Risk Register and emerging risks. Presentations on specific risks are provided at each meeting. 

• Departmental Management Teams take full ownership of risks within their area and agree mitigating actions with regular monitoring and 

reporting processes in place. 

 
 

Managing 

Performance 

 
• The Council has corporate performance management and reporting processes in place with quarterly monitoring by Scrutiny Committees. 

• A regular programme of reporting on progress against outcomes, metrics and targets including benchmarking is in place at senior level. 

• Regular meetings between Chief Officers and their Lead members focus on key developments and risks going forward. 

88



Appendix 
1 

17 Local Code of Corporate Governance  

2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Robust in 

Internal Control 

• The adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s internal control environment is tested throughout the year as a result of the 

approval and implementation of a risk based Internal Audit Annual Plan and by undertaking audits. 

• The Council participates in a range of external audits, inspections and accreditations to ensure it remains accountable for the quality of 

services its delivers as well to support continuous improvement of services. 

• An annual report is produced by Internal Audit which provides an opinion on the council’s control environment, and a self-

assessment of its arrangements against the public sector internal audit standards and CIPFA’s guide to the role of the Head of 

Internal Audit. 

• There is an Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy which is subject to biennial review and is approved by the Corporate Governance 

Committee 

• The Annual Governance Statement (AGS) is subject to review by the Corporate Governance Committee. 
 

 

 

 

Managing Data 

• The Council has a Corporate Data Protection Policy and well-established risk assessment processes. An Information Asset Register is 
in place. 

• New mandatory training for managers has been implemented on data protection and information management. 

• A partnership information sharing protocol, and information sharing agreements are put in place where required. 

• Policies that govern the use of data, and corporate data standards are in place. 

• A variety of groups and monitoring are in place to ensure effective information management practice. 

• A Corporate Business Intelligence Service in place to support effective management and interpretation of data and 
evidence. 

 

Strong Public 

Financial 

Management 

• Financial procedures are documented in the Financial Regulations. 

• Monthly budget monitoring reports on the MTFS (capital and revenue) are provided to senior management and Member committees, 

Cabinet and Scrutiny. The reports provide an overall update, reasons for significant variances, actions being taken and any ongoing 

impact. 

• The Annual Report from Overview and Scrutiny is submitted to the Council each year.  

• The Police and Crime Panel monitor the performance of the Police and Crime Commissioner against his key policy – the Police 

and Crime Plan. It also monitors the associated activities and policies of the Commissioner and his Office. 

• The Councils accounts show a strong track record of operating within its resources while allocating investment towards priority areas. 

89



Appendix 
1 

18 Local Code of Corporate Governance  

2019 

 

 

Rationale: Accountability is about ensuring that those making decisions and delivering services are answerable for them. Effective accountability is 

concerned not only with reporting on actions completed, but also ensuring that stakeholders are able to understand and respond as the organisation plans 

and carries out its activities in a transparent manner. Both external and internal audit contribute to effective accountability. 

Principle G. Implementing good practices in transparency reporting and audit to deliver effective accountability  
 

 

Sub-principle Examples of the Council’s commitment to achieving good governance in practice is demonstrated below 

 
• Agendas, reports and minutes are published on the council’s website. 

 • Committee reports and debates are made available online to the public. 

Implementing 

good 

practices in 

transparency 

and reporting 

• Regular press releases and briefings with good press coverage. 

• An Annual report is produced and also user friendly reports such as local account and report for young people. 

• Scrutiny and performance reporting in place around the current main service departments, scrutiny commission and through 
the police and crime panel.  Performance reports on wider health performance to Health Scrutiny Committee and Health and 
Wellbeing Board. Communities Strategy in place to support community delivery.   

• Council newsletter produced for all residents. 

• The Council’s external Auditor’s Annual Report and Management Letter is discussed at the Corporate Governance Committee 
and then circulated to all members of the Council. 

• The quarterly performance and budget monitoring reports circulated to the Cabinet and Scrutiny members provide information 
on the Council’s performance.  Members are able to judge the Council’s performance against targets set and to take actions 
necessary to address issues raised. 

 • The Annual Financial Statements are compiled, published to timetable and included on the council’s website. 

 • The Annual Governance Statement (AGS) is prepared in accordance with CIPFA guidance. 

90



Appendix 
1 

19 Local Code of Corporate Governance  

2019 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Assurance 

and effective 

accountability 

• The AGS sets out the council’s governance framework and the results of the annual review of the effectiveness of the council’s 

arrangements. The AGS includes areas for improvement. 

• An effective internal audit function is resourced and maintained. The Internal Audit Service has direct access to members and provides 

assurance on governance arrangements via an annual report containing an opinion on the council’s internal control arrangements. 

• There is compliance with CIPFA Statements on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer and the Role of the Head of Internal Audit. 

• There is an Internal Audit Charter (revised November 2016) which sets out the purpose, authority and responsibility for the internal audit 

function and clearly defines Members and officers’ roles, responsibilities and relationship. 

• The Internal Audit Service was subject to an independent external quality assessment (April 2018) with a conclusion that it generally conforms 
(top grading) to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. 

• An independent risk management maturity health check was undertaken during October 2018 – report conclusion was positive but 
further improvements are necessary in some areas. 

• External Audit provides an annual opinion on the Council’s financial statements and arrangements. 

• The Council engages in peer challenge, reviews and inspections from regulatory bodies and implementing recommendations. 

91



Appendix 
1 

20 Local Code of Corporate Governance  

2019 

 

 

Key roles of those responsible for developing and maintaining the Governance Framework 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Council 

  Cabinet  

Corporate 
Governance 
Committee 

Committees 

   Corporate 

Management Team 

Head of Paid Service 

Monitoring Officer 

Chief Financial 

Officer 

Internal Audit 

External Audit 

The council political structure is based on a Leader and Cabinet model The Constitution includes  how the Council makes decisions and the 
procedures it follows to make sure that these are efficient, clear and accountable to local people. The Council agrees the budget, approval 
major plans, appoints the Cabinet, Scrutiny Commission and main bodies and receives reports from Cabinet and Scrutiny bodies. 

The Cabinet is responsible for key decisions, working within the Budget and Policy Framework approved by the County Council. The 
Cabinet also determines various plans as provided for in the Constitution  

 

The promotion and maintenance of high standards within the Authority in relation to the operation of the Council's Code of Corporate 
Governance. 
Promotes high standards of Member conduct and approves the Annual Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement. 

 

There are a number of permanent Overview and Scrutiny committees. Their membership comprises of councillors who are not on the 
Cabinet. They give advice to the Cabinet and Council as a whole. They also monitor the decisions made by the Cabinet The councillors who 
are not members of the Cabinet are instead involved in committees (sometimes known as boards) in the Regulatory area. These boards and 
committees take decisions on non-executive areas. This includes tasks like licensing, planning and elections 

 

Chaired by the Chief Executive and comprising Directors of the Departments of the Council. It aims to ensure corporate cohesion across the 
Council and provides a means of sharing information and raising awareness of politically contentious issues which could have an impact on 
the Council as a whole 

The Chief Executive (as Head of Paid Service) is responsible for coordinating the different functions of the council, staff appointment, 
organisation, management, numbers and grades. Additional responsibilities are set out in the Constitution include supporting councilors and 
the democratic process, overall corporate management and promoting our objectives, performance management, strategic partnership, the 
community strategy, media and communications. 

 
Ensure that decisions taken comply with all necessary statutory requirements and are lawful (any decision that is likely to be unlawful or 
lead to maladministration then the Council and/or Executive will be advised. Ensue decisions are taken in accordance with the Council’s 
budget and Policy Framework. Provide advice and scope of powers and authority to take decisions as well as support the member 
complaint process 
 

 Discharge of responsibilities under the Local Government Act - S151 responsibilities and Chief Financial Officer under CIPFA- Role  

Provides independent and objective assurance and an annual opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s governance, 
risk management and control framework. Delivers an annual programme of risk-based audit activity, including counter fraud and 
investigation activity. 

Makes recommendations for improvements in the management of risk. 

 Audit / review and report on the Council’s financial statements (including the Annual Governance Statement), providing an opinion on the 
accounts and use of resources, concluding on the arrangements in place for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of 
resources (the value for money conclusion). 

92

https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/how-the-council-works/meetings-and-decisions/the-cabinet


 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 26TH JULY 2019 
 

REPORT OF DIRECTOR OF LAW AND GOVERNANCE 
 

ANNUAL REPORT ON THE OPERATION OF THE MEMBERS' CODE 
OF CONDUCT 2018/19  

 
Purpose of Report 
 
1. This report fulfils the requirement for the Monitoring Officer to report to the 

Committee on an annual basis on the operation of the Members' Code of 
Conduct in accordance with a decision of the Committee on 24th September 
2012. 

 
Background 
 
2. In the light of the changes introduced in the Localism Act 2011 a revised 

Members' Code of Conduct was adopted at the County Council meeting on 4th 
July 2012.  The effect of the changes was to give this Committee responsibility 
for dealing with matters relating to the Code. 

 
3. Detailed arrangements for dealing with allegations against Members were 

considered by this Committee on 24th September 2012 and a procedure for 
dealing with allegations was agreed. These were reviewed and updated by this 
Committee in September 2017.  

 
4. Since then, the Committee has received and commented on the report of the 

Committee on Standards in Public Life and the Government’s  response is 
awaited  which will inform the future arrangements for the Code of Conduct  
nationally and locally.  

 
Complaints received under the Members' Code of Conduct 
 
5. Since May 2018 there have been seven complaints (relating to five members) 

received by the Monitoring Officer under the Members' Code of Conduct.  
These complaints were resolved as follows: 

  

Outcome of complaint  
 

Number of  members  

Complaint  withdrawn / not progressed 
by complainant    

2  

Complaint did not meet threshold for 
further investigation as set out in the 
‘initial test’  

2 (1 complaint) 

93 Agenda Item 11



6.  As in previous years there are no trends in relation to the subject matter or in 
relation to the members who have been the subject of a complaint. 

 
7. As members will be aware, complaints alleging failure to register a Disclosable 

Pecuniary Interest are matters for consideration by Leicestershire Police as the 
Localism Act 2011 has made such failures a criminal offence.  No such 
complaints have been received during the period under review.   

 
Member Conduct Panel 
 
8. There have been no referrals to the Member Conduct Panel during the period 

of this review.  
 
Independent Persons  
 
9.  The Council at its meeting in September 2016 appointed a panel of 

Independent Persons as required by the Localism Act 2011 for a period of four 
years.  These arrangements will be kept under review as any further 
information arises from the report of the Committee on Standards in Public Life 
in due course.  Otherwise steps will be taken to recruit and/or reappoint where 
appropriate a panel to serve from September 2020. 

 
Recommendation 
 
10. The Committee is asked to note this Report. 
 
Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 
11. None arising from this report. 
 
Background papers 
 
Guide to the Leicestershire County Council Members’ Code of Conduct 

 
Leicestershire County Council’s Procedure for dealing with allegations of a breach of 
the Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 
Report to the Corporate Governance Committee on 24 September 2012 - 
‘Arrangements for dealing with Member Conduct Complaints’ 
 
Report to the Corporate Governance Committee on 26 November 2012 -  
‘Arrangements for dealing with Member Conduct Complaints’ 
 
Circulation under the Local Issues Alert Procedure 
 
None.   
 
 
 
 

94



Officer to contact 
 
Lauren Haslam  
Director of Law and Governance and  
Monitoring Officer 
Tel: 0116 3056240  Email: lauren.haslam@leics.gov.uk 
 

95

mailto:lauren.haslam@leics.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 26 JULY 2019 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 
 

INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE PROGRESS REPORT 
 

 
Purpose of Report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to: - 
 

a. provide a summary of work conducted during the period 29 April 2019 
to 12 July 2019; 

b. report on progress with implementing high importance 
recommendations; 

 
 

Background 
 

2. Under the County Council’s Constitution, the Committee is required to monitor 
the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal audit function, which is provided 
by Leicestershire County Council’s Internal Audit Service (LCCIAS).  To do 
this, the Committee receives periodic reports on progress against the annual 
Internal Audit Plan. 
   

3. Most planned audits undertaken are of an ‘assurance’ type, which requires 
undertaking an objective examination of evidence to reach an independent 
opinion on whether risk is being mitigated.  Other planned audits are of a 
‘consulting’ type, which are primarily advisory and guidance to management.  
These add value, for example, by commenting on the effectiveness of controls 
designed before implementing a new system.  Also, unplanned ‘investigation’ 
type audits may be undertaken.  Internal audit staff also undertake other 
control environment related work. 
 

Summary of progress against the Internal Audit Plan 2018-19 
 

4. This report provides in Appendix 1 a summary of work undertaken between 29 
April 2019 and 12 July 2019.   
 

5. For assurance audits (page 1 of Appendix 1) an ‘opinion’ is given, i.e. what 
level of assurance can be given that material risks are being managed.  There 
are usually four levels: full; substantial; partial; and little.  ‘Partial’ ratings are 
normally given when the auditor has reported at least one high importance 
recommendation, which would be reported to this Committee and a follow up 

 
97 Agenda Item 12



 
 

audit would ensue to confirm action had been implemented.  Occasionally, the 
auditor might report a number of recommendations that individually are not 
graded high importance but collectively would require a targeted follow up to 
ensure improvements have been made. 
 

6. LCCIAS also undertakes consulting/advisory type audits (page 2).  Where 
these incur a reasonable amount of resource, they are also included. 
Examples include advice, commentary on management’s intended control 
design and framework and potential implications of changes to systems, 
processes and policies.  
 

7. Page 3 of Appendix 1 provides information on: - 
 

a. Where LCCIAS either undertakes or assists with unplanned 
investigations.  These are not reported to the Committee until the final 
outcome is known.  This period, no investigations were concluded. 

b. ‘Other control environment/assurance work’, which gives a flavour of 
where internal auditors are utilised to challenge and improve 
governance, risk management and internal control processes which 
ultimately strengthens the overall control environment 

c. where LCCIAS auditors are utilised to undertake work assisting other 
functions 

. 
8. In order to remain effective, LCCIAS staff regularly attend training and 

development events and both midlands and national internal audit network 
events.  A summary of events attended during the last quarter is shown on 
page 4.    
 

Progress with implementing high importance recommendations 
 

9. The Committee is also tasked with monitoring the implementation of high 
importance recommendations.  Appendix 2 details high importance (HI) 
recommendations and provides a short summary of the issues surrounding 
these.  The relevant manager’s agreement (or otherwise) to implementing the 
recommendation and implementation timescales is shown.  Recommendations 
that have not been reported to the Committee before or where LCCIAS has 
identified that some update has occurred to a previously reported 
recommendation are shown in bold font.  Entries remain on the list until the 
auditor has confirmed (by specific re-testing) that action has been 
implemented. 
 

10. To summarise movements within Appendix 2: - 
 

a. New – none 
b. In progress - Corporate Resources - Property Contracts Awards 

(extended); Corporate Resources - Leicestershire Schools Music 
Service) 

c. Closed – Public Health - Substance Misuse Strategy – Residential 
Rehabilitation 

 

98



 
 

Resource implications 
 

11. There are no resource implications arising directly from this report. The costs 
attributable to employing agency staff is being met from staffing budgets. 
 

Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 

12. There are no discernible equality and human rights implications resulting from 
the audits listed. 
 

Recommendation 
 

13. That the contents of the routine update report be noted. 
 
Background Papers 
 
The Constitution of Leicestershire County Council 
 
Report to the Corporate Governance Committee on 10 May 2019 - Internal Audit 
Plan for 2019-20 
 
Circulation under the Local Issues Alert Procedure 

 
None. 
 
Officer to Contact 
 
Neil Jones, Head of Internal Audit & Assurance Service 
Tel: 0116 305 7629 Email: neil.jones@leics.gov.uk 

 
Appendices 

 
Appendix 1 - Summary of Internal Audit Service work undertaken between 

29 April 2019 and 12 July 2019 
Appendix 2 - High Importance Recommendations 
 

99

mailto:neil.jones@leics.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 

 

Summary of Internal Audit Service Work – 29th April to 12th July 2019                             Appendix 1 

Assurance Audits 

Department Entity Final report (or 

position at 12/7) 

Opinion HI Rec’n 

Adults & Communities Learning Disabilities – Transitions from children’s 
complex care to adults 
 

28-June-19 Substantial No 

Children & Family Services All Saints C of E Primary School 4-Jun-19 Substantial No 

Children & Family Services Long Whatton C of E Primary School 6-Jun-19 Substantial No 

Children & Family Services Orchard Community Primary School 10-Jun-19 Substantial No 

Children & Family Services Warren Hills Community Primary School 9-May-19 Substantial No 

Children & Family Services Payment by Results Claims for Supporting 

Leicestershire Families (SLF) 

14-May-19 n/a n/a 

Consolidated Risk Data Washing of Procurement Data 14-May-19 Substantial No 

Consolidated Risk Information Security Incident Management Draft Issued Substantial No 

Consolidated Risk Data Washing of Procurement Data (Serious & 

Organised Crime) 

13-May-19 Full No 

Environment & Transport Re-cycling & Household Waste Sites - Income 12-Jun-19 Substantial No 

101



 

2 

 

Consulting audits 

Department Entity Final report (or position at 12/7) 

Consolidated Risk Payments made using a generic element code On going 

Corporate Resources ISRA - Eventbrite (Live Solution) 30-June-19 

Chief Executives Coroners On-going 

Corporate Resources ISRA - Notify.Gov - Blue Badge Service Ongoing 

Consolidated Risk Tethering Ongoing 

Consolidated Risk PSN - In March 2019, LCC obtained its PSN certificate valid 

until April 2020. Advice has been given by Internal Audit 

through the PSN working Group. 

Ongoing  

Corporate Resources Fit for the Future Project – IAS continues to liaise with the 

Project Team and Nottingham City Council internal auditors. 

IAS received the Organisational Impact Assessments 

completed following the first round of workshops. These will 

be reviewed to determine what impact any process/system 

changes will have on the Council’s control environment. 

Ongoing 

Corporate Resources Supplier Code of Conduct Ongoing 

Corporate Resources  Review of the following Policy and Procedures 
 

 Flowz Information Asset register solution. 

 Attendance at Information Asset Group 
 

Ongoing  

 

102



 

3 

 

Investigations concluded 

None during this period  

 

Other control environment/assurance work 

Department Entity Final report (or position 

at 12/7) 

Governance Finalised Annual Governance Statement for 2018/19 for insertion in the Annual 

Financial Statements 

Complete 

Governance Reviewed and updated the Authority’s Local Code of Corporate Governance  Complete 

Consolidated Risk Prepared detailed Risk Management Health Check Action Plan following the Risk 

Management Partners Consultants Report 

Complete 

 

Work assisting other functions 

Department Entity   Position at 12/7 

Corporate Resources Work Experience Students (3) – Provide overview of audit (both internal and 

external) and explain the importance of controls in an organisation  

 

Corporate Resources Assisted at Departmental Management Team workshop to review corporate risks 

owned by the Department 

Complete 

 

 

103



 

4 

 

 

Training, development and networks attended during the quarter 

CIPFA Summer Internal Audit update  

 Auditing Risk Management, Auditing Digital Services, Oversight of outsourced arrangements and maintaining robust internal controls. 

 

CIPFA Better Governance Forum  

 Assurance Over Financial Resilience and Service Sustainability 

 Auditing Risk Management, Auditing Digital Services, Oversight of outsourced arrangements and maintaining robust internal controls. 

 

Institute of Internal Auditors – Regional Conference 

 Fraud Leadership & Corporate Culture, Whistleblowing, Using Technology, Audit & Risk Awards, Risk Management Framework for 

Audit Planning, Data Analytics, High Quality Reporting  

 

IA Networks 

 GDPR and cybersecurity conference 

 

East Midlands Risk Management Group 

 Attendance at Regional Event  

104



 

 

Appendix 2 

 

High Importance Recommendations at 12 July 2019 

 
Audit Title 

(Director) 

Summary of Finding(s) and Recommendation(s) Management Response Action Date 

(by end of) 

 

Confirmed 

Implemented 

Reported May 

2019 

    

Property 

Contracts Awards 

(CR) 

 

Management requested an audit of the award of 

property maintenance contracts and the allocation of 

work. Whilst the audit identified poor practice and 

control, no evidence came to light of any wrong 

doing. Management agreed to act on a number of 

recommendations to strengthen control. 

Agreed 

 

There is evidence that improvements 

already put in place are becoming 

embedded. Additionally. Internal 

Audit Service is undertaking extensive 

work to check the degree of 

retrospective orders and the associated 

processes. 

 

   

June 2019 

 

Extend to August 

2019 

 

Leicestershire 

Schools Music 

Service 

(CR) 

 

At management’s request a review of the financial, 

operational and governance arrangements in place 

surrounding the Leicester-Shire Schools Music 

Service (LSMS) and it’s at arm’s length charity, the 

Leicester-Shire Music and Cultural Trust (LMCT) 

was undertaken. This review included the separation 

of responsibilities between both the LSMS and the 

LMCT and to assess that proper procedures are in 

place for the administration of ensembles.  

 

A number of recommendations and an action plan for 

implementation were agreed with management, 

including improved governance arrangements, 

clearer job roles and responsibilities, revised 

contracts and overtime arrangements, revise 

Agreed 

 

Work is well advanced to develop new 

operational and governance processes 

to separate and clarify the respective 

roles of the Trust and the LSMS. This 

include amended job roles and 

contracts.  More flexibility in working 

arrangements is proposed to reduce 

operational costs, i.e. overtime.  

Transport arrangements to determine 

an optimal solution that both meets the 

needs of the Service and is 

operationally efficient. 

September 2019   

105



 

2 

 

procurement of transport.  

Whilst none of the recommendations was deemed 

individually as “high importance” collectively the 

recommendations will require a targeted follow up to 

ensure improvements have been made. 

 

Substance Misuse 

Strategy – 

Residential 

Rehabilitation 

 

(PH & A&C)  

Findings: - 

 

1. An incorrect discharge date had been input to 

the case management system which allowed a 

provider to be overpaid by just over £36,000 

for over a year 

2. Whilst the budget is complex (placements not 

directly made by the budget holder and 

contains other charges), monitoring 

procedures were not sufficiently robust. 

Responsibility for the Residential 

Rehabilitation budget is in the process of 

being transferred from Adults & 

Communities to Public Health.  This will give 

the opportunity for current systems and 

processes, for example with regard to budget 

monitoring, to be reviewed by Public Health 

and, where necessary, strengthened. 

 

Recommended  

 

1. Recover the overpayment with immediate 

effect and review current systems to 

determine how controls failed to identify this 

significant error and what processes can be 

modified moving forward to prevent 

recurrence, e.g. tighter budget monitoring. 

2. Monthly budget monitoring should confirm 

that all charges to the budget are to relevant 

Agreed 

 

1. Just over £8,000 was recovered 

by netting off against amounts 

owed to the provider by LCC.  

An invoice for the remaining 

balance was raised in May 2019. 

2. The transfer of budget is now 

agreed, and Public Health has 

set up a discrete budget code for 

these payments which will aid 

monitoring.  A new decision-

making board met for the first-

time last month and from that 

meeting data has been fed into a 

new tracking sheet for 

individuals and invoices to be 

cross referenced against.  

Calendar reminders will allow 

the team to check each month 

when invoices are received.  

Public Health has changed the 

process for the commissioning 

of services from providers and 

will revert to a traditional 

invoicing method as opposed to 

automatic payments being made 

currently based on system-input 

provision start and end dates.   

June 2019 Yes 

106



 

3 

 

providers and for current service users, cross 

referencing to a dynamic schedule of service 

users to facilitate this process. 

 

 
Audit/CGC/19-20/July19/Appendix 2 HI Progress Report       Last Revised 12

th
 July 2019     

   

107



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 26TH July 2019 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES   

QUARTERLY TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT  

 
 

Purpose of the Report   

1. To update the Committee on the actions taken in respect of treasury 
management for the quarter ending 30 June 2019 (Quarter 1). 

Background  

2. Treasury Management is defined as:-  

“The management of the organisation’s investments and cash flows, its 
banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective control 
of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum 
performance consistent with those risks”. 

3. A quarterly report is produced for the Committee to provide an update on 
any significant events in the area of treasury management. 

Economic Background 

4. The Council’s treasury management adviser Link Asset Management 
provides a quarterly update outlining the global economic outlook and 
monetary policy positions.  An extract from this report is attached as 
Appendix A.  In summary the key points are; 

5. In the UK, quarterly growth to 31 March 2019 proved better than expected 
with an increase of 0.5%, however forecasts for the subsequent quarters 
expect this to recede closer to zero.  

6. UK Consumer price inflation is expected to remain around the Bank of 
England’s 2% target in the short term, although upside pressures indicate 
there is potential for this to rise early next year.   

109 Agenda Item 13



7. Monetary policy in the UK remains on hold whilst the uncertainty surrounding 
Brexit continues. Given the signs of upward inflationary pressure and 
previous signals, the Bank of England’s monetary policy committee is likely 
to want to raise interest rates. However, market expectations are now 
forecasting that a rate change is unlikely to occur during the rest of this year 
or even early next year.   

8. Eurozone growth improved in the first three months of 2019 however, like 
the UK, this is forecast to slow in the second quarter. Falling inflation 
expectations in the Eurozone has led to investors starting to factor in a rate 
cut from the European Central Bank. 

9. In the US, competing inflationary pressures from falling core inflation and 
upside pressure anticipated from Chinese import tariffs do not appear to be 
of direct concern to the Federal Reserve. Instead the expectation is the 
central bank will focus more on the effect on real activity. Analysts forecast 
quarter 2 growth of less than 2% annualised, with an expectation that US 
interest rates will be cut before year end.  

 
Action Taken during Quarter 1 to June 2019 

10. The balance of the investment portfolio increased from £247.5m to £257.8m.  
Within the portfolio, £67.5m of investment loans matured at an average rate 
of 0.92%, and £77.8m of new loans were placed, at an average rate of 
1.06%.  

11. The average rate achieved on new loans exceeds the average rate achieved 
on loans maturing. This trend has been prevalent since the increase in the 
Bank of England base rate back in August 2018. Market expectations are that 
there will be no rate change in the short term. 

12. The Chart below shows the weighted annual percentage rate (APR) achieved 
by the loans portfolio compared to the Bank of England base rate: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

110



13. The implications for treasury management strategy are that market rates for 
new loans are falling and the positive rate trend highlighted in paragraphs 11 
and 12 is likely to have peaked for now. Given this period of depressed rates, 
in order to achieve optimum performance, opportunities will be taken to 
manage the maturity profile of the portfolio and ensure an even spread of 
maturities throughout the year.       

14. The loan portfolio at the end of June was invested with the counterparties 
shown in the list below, shown by original investment date: 

 

 £m Maturity Date 

   

Instant Access   

Money Market Funds 22.8 June 2019 

   

6 Months   

Nationwide Building Society 10.0 July 2019 

Santander 20.0 September 2019 

Close Brothers Ltd 20.0 September 2019 

Santander 5.0 November 2019 

Goldman Sachs  10.0 December 2019 

   

9 Months   

Australia & New Zealand Bank 10.0 February 2019 

   

12 Months   

National Westminster Bank Plc 20.0 July 2019 

National Westminster Bank Plc 20.0 August 2019 

Toronto Dominion Bank 15.0 October 2019 

Landesbank Hessen Thuringen 15.0 October 2019 

Commonwealth Bank of Australia 10.0 November 2019 

Lloyds (Bank of Scotland) 20.0 November 2019 

Lloyds (Bank of Scotland) 20.0 May 2020 

Australia & New Zealand Bank 10.0 May 2020 

   

Beyond 12 Months   

Partners Group (Private Debt) 20.0 Estimated 2024 

Danske Bank 10.0 September 2027 

   

Total Portfolio Balance at 
30th June 2019 

 
257.8 

 

 
 

Loans to counterparties that breached authorised lending list 

15. There were no loans active during the period that breached the authorised 
counterparty list at the time that the loan was made, and none that had 

111



already been placed to a counterparty that subsequently fell below the 
threshold that would have been acceptable for the remaining period of the 
loan following a credit-rating downgrade. 
 
 

Resource Implications  

16. The interest earned on revenue balances and the interest paid on external 
debt will impact directly onto the resources available to the Council. 

Equality and Human Rights Implications  

17. There are no discernible equality and human rights implications. 

Recommendation   

18. The Committee is asked to note this report. 

Background Papers  

19. Appendix A – Economic Overview (May 2019) 

Circulation under the Local Issues Alert Procedure  

None 

 
Officers to Contact 
 
Mr C Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources,  
Corporate Resources Department, 
0116 305 6199    E-mail Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk 
 
Mr D Keegan, Assistant Director (Strategic Finance and Property),  
Corporate Resources Department,  
0116 305 7668   E-mail Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk 

112

mailto:Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk
file:///C:/Users/jfirth/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/0ABUO68F/Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk


Appendix A 

 

Page 1 of 4 
 

Economic Overview (May 2019)  

Overview 

The view is that after stronger than expected Q1 growth the remainder of the year could prove more 

of a struggle. Certainly, Q2 data so far has been weak and a further Brexit delay or a “no deal” Brexit, 

either of which is likely, will do little to offer a boost. Economists suggest that this means GDP 

growth, interest rates, gilt yields and Sterling will remain lower for a prolonged period. That will not, 

though, set it apart from the rest of the world, which is also stuttering on trade worries and the 

broader impact of the trade war on global economic prospects. Consequently, the UK economy is in 

much the same place as the EZ in Q2. 

Market inflation expectations in the EZ have eased to levels where the ECB has previously relaxed 

policy. Indeed, the central bank’s indicator, the five year/five year inflation swap level is at a near 

three year low. The ECB suggested, in April, that this was down to a lower expectation of inflation 

overshooting the target level, but the level has, subsequently, fallen further. Economists are now 

looking for the ECB to strengthen 

forward guidance and put generous terms to the TLTROs being introduced in the Autumn. However, 

that may not markedly raise expectations, which could result in the need to revert to additional 

Quantitative Easing. 

Falling US core inflation appears to be of little concern to the Fed. However, with stock market gains 

at a near record high, those downside influences are being reversed. Nevertheless, even removing 

these factors, core inflation has softened, which must be 

down to a slowing in unit labour costs growth, which is likely to push core inflation lower still. While 

the imposition of tariffs on Chinese goods may put upside pressure on consumer prices in the latter 

part of the year, the Fed will likely focus more on the effect on real activity. Analysts see Q2 GDP 

growth of less than 2% annualised, which raises the possibility that interest rates could be cut before 

year end. 

Japanese Q1 GDP growth of 0.5% q/q was unexpected and coupled with total hours worked falling 

by 3% q/q has put productivity at its strongest level in nearly four years. This is in line with evidence 

that firms have been increasing investment spending when faced with capacity shortages and the 

tight labour market. Software investment hit record levels, with business investment likely to remain 

high relative to output. As such, productivity growth should remain solid, but though this is good for 

growth it is not what the Bank of Japan needs in its quest for 2% inflation. 

113



Appendix A 

 

Page 2 of 4 
 

Chinese retail sales growth slowed to the weakest rate since 2003 in April. In part this was down to 

falling fuel prices, but there was also a reduction of spending on household appliances, furniture and 

food, suggesting a broad-based weakness, which indicates signs of household caution about the 

future. That is reflected by the dip in Q1 consumer confidence, with the worsening trade relations 

between the US and China only going to add to the problem. 

UK 

Q1 proved better than expected with a pick-up of quarterly growth to 0.5%. However, that may have 

been inflated by activity being brought forward ahead of the original 29th March Brexit date, with 

the likely consequence being a subsequent easing in Q2. Stock building was a key driver, but as some 

of this was imported, the increase of imports saw a negative contribution from net trade. That said, 

there will also have been some activity driven by a no-deal withdrawal. Government consumption 

and investment increased, with business surveys indicating that firms’ investment will remain 

subdued. Surveys have been fairly downbeat about Q2, with the composite PMI consistent with little 

or no growth, while the manufacturing sector activity appears to have contracted. The CBI growth 

indicator is similarly pessimistic, and forecasters suggest that Q2 GDP growth will recede close to 

zero. 

After a strong opening quarter, household spending will be pared back, but a sharp downturn is not 

expected. April retail sales were flat but that followed healthy growth through Q1. The BRC and CBI 

sales activity measures fell in May, but this was down to unwinding the boost generated by the 

impact of the early Easter. That said, annual sales growth is still expected to slow in the near future. 

There was a slight improvement in the services PMI, which suggests that spending in the sector has 

improved. Meanwhile, the healthy labour market is underpinning consumer confidence, which in 

turn could see spending supported by a pickup in household borrowing. 

Weakening overseas activity is likely to result in slowing export growth, which will impact on the 

short-term outlook for the external sector, which is confirmed in the PMI survey. Real import 

volumes increased by over 2% in Q1, as firms looked to stock up ahead of the original Brexit date. 

The import surge saw net trade make a negative contribution to Q1 GDP, and pushed the trade 

deficit to a record high. Goods import volumes should recede in Q2 as stockpiles are unwound, 

which should see net trade add to Q2 GDP growth. US-China trade problems should not impact on 

the UK too greatly. 

While the labour market may have seen employment and earnings growth slow, this does not point 

to any sharp reversal. The rate of unemployment hit a 44 year low of 3.8% in March, with full time 

114



Appendix A 

 

Page 3 of 4 
 

employment still on the increase. Nonetheless, the rate of annual employment growth slowed to 

1.1%, with survey evidence pointing to greater slowing ahead. 

Consumer price inflation should remain around the 2% target but has the potential to rise early next 

year. The bump to 2.1% in April was, largely, due to rising utility prices and a later Easter. Some 

retracement is possible in May, while the decline in sterling oil prices will have a drag effect on 

inflation a little later. Core goods inflation fell to 0.1% in March, the weakest since January 2017, but 

this is merely a lagged impact of the earlier decline in import price inflation and, therefore, should 

not be sustained. Underlying price pressures were evident, with input price inflation edging higher to 

3.8%, while core services inflation was also a touch higher at 3.1%. This raises the prospect that 

higher wage costs will add to inflationary pressures, which will lead to CPI heading higher, above 

2.5% in the early part of 2020. 

The political situation in the UK took its inevitable turn when Prime Minister, Theresa May, 

announced that she will stand down on June 7th, having failed to make any headway in gaining 

approval of her Brexit deal from the House of Commons despite numerous attempts. The obvious 

suspects were immediately put into the frame, some making their intentions clear early on, while 

one or two lesser lights also put their hands up. Front runner from the off is Boris Johnson but will he 

be able to pull the party together and garner the support that he needs through what promises to be 

an exhausting period at the hustings. The circus surrounding the selection will be in town for some 

time and in the meantime Parliamentary business will be side-lined…but then that has been the case 

for some time, with Brexit. If the process runs its full course, the PM’s successor is not expected to 

be announced before late July, possibly just after the Parliamentary summer recess commences. The 

incoming leader will then have just over three months to Brexit, which is not much time for 

negotiations, unless you are a hard Brexit PM, in which case that may be more than enough. 

Markets will monitor developments and the promises of the candidates closely, with the emergence 

of a hard Brexit favouring leader a potential cause for market concern. The uncertainty continues. 

Monetary Policy 

Monetary policy in the UK remains on hold as the Brexit debate continues, with the clock winding 

down to the October 31st withdrawal date. The discussion has been given a fresh edge with the 

Conservative Party leadership election, the result of which could totally reshape policy in this regard. 

The increased prospect of a "no deal" withdrawal, if a hard line Brexiteer is installed as the new 

leader/Prime Minister, has raised all sorts of questions and added to the uncertainty that already 

existed. The Bank of England MPC probably wants to raise rates given the signs of increased upside 

inflationary pressures, but the combination of Brexit and growing concerns about the global 

115



Appendix A 

 

Page 4 of 4 
 

economy has kept members straightjacketed where monetary policy is concerned. There will be a 

national sigh of relief once Brexit has been concluded, as this one topic has reduced the government 

of the country and effective central bank policy to secondary importance. Market expectations are 

that policy will remain unchanged for the remainder of the year and into 2020. 

The ECB’s policy stance has been clearly stated … it does not see any policy change until mid-2020 at 

the earliest, given their concerns about economic slowdown. 

The Federal Reserve has indicated that it is most unlikely to raise US interest rates this year, offering 

a dovish view of both domestic and global economic prospects. Analysts believe that even this softer 

view is still likely to prove over-optimistic and the central bank may be forced into cutting rates if the 

US economy slows as some fear. 

It is hard to see Japan raising rates while the economy continues to struggle to generate desired 

levels of inflation. China, though, could move in order to undermine some of the impact of the US 

tariff policy. An easing of policy would weaken the Renminbi and make its goods cheaper to import, 

and this will be helped by the Fed’s change of tack regarding its interest rates. 

 

Source: City Watch June 2019 - Link Asset Services 

116


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 10th May 2019.
	8 External Audit of the 2018/19 Statement of Accounts, Annual Governance Statement and Pension Fund Accounts
	Appendix A - GT Report
	Appendix B (LCC rep letter)
	Appendix C (PF Letter of Rep)

	9 Risk Management Report.
	Appendix  - Corporate Risk Register Update

	10 Local Code of Corporate Governance 2019.
	10 - Appendix - Local Code of Corporate Governance

	11 Annual Report on the operation of the Members' Code of Conduct and arrangements for dealing with complaints
	12 Internal Audit Service Progress Report.
	Appendix 1 - Summary of Internal Audit Service Work 290419 to 120719
	Appendix 2 - HI Progress Report at 12 July 2019

	13 Quarterly Treasury Management Update.
	Appendix A - Economic Overview (May 2019)


